

**Minutes of Meetings of the
Committee for Limerick City
Dispensary**

June 1882 to December 1892

at Pelung Office Halloran he called on to ~~have~~
report in writing to next meeting when he issues
this ticket

Read Herald's ~~proposal~~ Brought on his application
in which he gave notice, It was ordered that
~~the least part be requested~~ it be considered at
the next meeting of Committee

J. P. Kane M.D.

August 1 Present Dr Kane in Chair
Others present J. P. Myles

After reading from Dr. Elston among Chairman that he
had occasion to go to Killee for a few days and
that of Brouke would attend in his
place from Dr. Holmes and that his Brother
would attend in his place
Also from Dr. Holmes asking One Month
leave of absence his Brother to accept
him. Granted a leave for One Month
on Brother's piece

J. P. Kane M.D.

Sept 5 Present Dr Kane in Chair
W. L. Kane J. P. Myles

from Holmes Elston Elms & Connor signed
also report Brouke

Inquisition for Magazine signed
letter from Dr. Connor ^{14 Aug} that he was leaning
towards the Sunday one that Dr. Graham
would act in his

J. P. Kane M.D.

mes Dr Kane in Chair Present
also of Myles, McLenahan

Drs Elms, John, Robert Connor, Books signed
also Report Book

Requisition in Medicine signed

J. W. Kane
Chairman

July 3 Present Dr Kane in Chair
Dr D. Gerald, B. Myles

Drs Connor, Elms, Robert, Holmes, Books signed

Requisition in Medicine signed

J. W. Kane
In P.

Aug 7 Present Dr Kane in Chair
Dr D. Dan Gerald, B. Myles

Requisition in Medicine signed also
Dr Elms, Connor, Robert, Holmes, Books, Report Book
from Dr Connor to Chairman dated that he was leaving
in one month, and that Dr Nolan would act during
Letter from Dr Nolan consenting to act
from Dr Lee asking for one week's leave and nominating
other William to act for him. Leave granted when
stitute comes, so as the 10th inst, will be attended
from Dr Holmes asking Leave and nominating
Graham as his substitute. Leave granted
month
Dr Graham intimating in Meeting his willingness
to act for the second next Leave
at request from Dr Lee that he could not put

Stating that Dr. Erney was still beyond, and
to perform his dispensary Committee, and it was
that he get an additional leave of absence for the

Leave of absence granted for 14 days from
this date, Dr. Myles to act as substitute for Dr. Erney

W. H. K.
Chairman

May - 1883

Proposed Dr. Home R. Bullym Hastings

Mr. Lincham & Myles Mr. Russell Gaffney

Proposed by Mr. Lincham

Seconded by Mr. Hastings That Dr. Home be
Chairman for ensuing year

Dr. Home Proposed That Mr. Lincham

Mr. Myles Seconded Mr. Chairman

Proposed by R. Bullym That Mr. Myles

Seconded by Mr. Lincham Hon Sec

Dr. Redstone, Connors, Holmes

Requisition in Medicine signed

Letter read from Dr. Holmes to Chairman
stating that he had occasion to leave
for a few days and appointing Dr. Erney
as his substitute Approved

Letter from Dr. Myles applying for 4th
payment of 3 Guinea's worth Recorred

Payment

W. H. K.
Chairman

October 3 Board of Home in Chancery
Hester Walker, Myler, Puddon, Herald
Drs Holmes, Holmes, Elston, Comus, Brooks, signed
Requisition for Medicine
Dr A Comus, Return for Vaccination,
Wks submitted to Clerk of Union for examination
Hester Rome
Dr D

November 7 Board of Home in Chancery
Hester Walker, Myler
Drs Holmes, Holmes, Elston, Comus, Brooks, signed
Requisition for Medicine
Hester Rome
Dr D

Dec 5 Puddon & Herald in Chancery
Hester Walker, Myler, L O Hesse
Drs Clinis, Holmes, Comus, Elston, Brooks,
signed also Return for Brooks
Requisition for Medicine signed
D. Fitzgerald
Dec 5th 1882

1003
Jan 2 Hester Walker in Chancery
B. Myler, Puddon & Herald
Drs Holmes, Holmes, Elston, Comus, Brooks, signed
also Requisition for Medicine and
Dr Elston & Holmes Return for Vaccination
Hester Walker
Chairman
2 January 1883

1883

6

Tu Present Dr Kane in Chair
Mr Walker Jas Nolan & O'Keefe Dr & Dr
The usual Business done
2 Tickets were cancelled

The Rone
Chairman

Wed's Present Dr Kane in Chair
Mr Walker & Myles

Requisition for Medicine signed
Dr's Gilston, Elmes, Connors, Holmes, Broth
Attendance Book, were signed

The Rone
Chairman

Thu 3 Present Dr Kane in Chair
Dr Myles, Jas Nolan, H. H. O'Keefe, Dr W. Namca
M. Lenehan

Dr's Gilston, Holmes, Connors, Broth, signed
Requisition for Medicine signed

Letter read from Dr Elmes stating that having had
an accident owing to his horse having ran away
and he was thrown out of the Car, was unable to
discharge his dispensary duties and nominating
Dr Geo Myles to act in his stead, also asking for
Leave of Absence for 14 Days

Order Leave granted, and his appointment
of Dr Myles to act as his substitute, approved

Letter read from Dr Myles, agreeing to act in
Dr Elmes' place at the usual Remuneration

The Hon Secretary Reported that Dr Myles
was acting as Locum Tenens for Dr Myles

Ordered That Dr Myles be paid the usual
Remuneration of 3 Guineas a Week

Certificate from Dr Lenehan dated 31st March

in his Requisition for Medicine as usual, as he
had not the usual forms, that he applied to the
Clerk of the Union for the Book and not having
got the Book, he had to make a temporary substitute
Order. That this be reported to the Board of
Guardians

on Enquiry we have been told by Dr Lee that
no Invoices come with the Goods, and when they
do get them by long time delays after receipt
of the Goods, and that the Goods ^{at least}
Month ^{3 July} and because no Invoices have yet been
presented to him, it has also transpired that
Belladonna Tablets which was struck ~~out~~ of
and not ordered by Committee ^{on 3 July} has been ~~ordered~~
we asked in the Invoice, what he says he has re-
set, ^{with} The Call upon the Guardians to see that
regularities rectified and the attention of the
Inspector is requested, and his advice

Also that the ~~former~~ Medicine Contracts which have
been decreed to the Contractors, have ^{since} been ~~settled~~
with our Officer who does not know from whom
he is to order those Medicines, so wanted

See next Page

J. H. Keane
Chairman

Oct 12 1883

In Chair Dr Kane
Also Grant Dr Herald Sherman 3 Mfg

Dr Estlin Dr Connor Holmes Books
Signed also Requisition for Medicine

Dr A Connor Application for Vaccination
Sept 9-120 from Hill to 30 Sept 83
Reconsider for Payment

Clerk of Union Report as to Minutes
of July
Ordered That the Apportioning of City Debt
be held accountable for the Accuracy
of the Medicines supplied as to Invoices
as to the accuracy of quantities and the
Prices charged, same also to be examined
by Clerk of Union before Payment for same
is ordered by the Board of Health

Dr Kane
Chairman

Members In Chair Dr Kane

Also Grant Mfg

Dr A Connor Estlin Holmes Holmes Books signed
also Requisition for Medicine

Dr Connor applied to have Report for issue
June 4 ~~1883~~ ~~marked~~ ~~him~~ on his Book
as Preliminary Patent was out, ~~no~~ order
made, as so long a time, has elapsed since
the ticket was issued and has expired on,
although Committee meet regularly each month
no application made to cancel till today
Letters of Certificate from Dr Estlin & Dr Holmes
applied for Lib in attendance at Dr Kane

Mr Elston - Refereed to a former Meeting
Order 1/2 Iron Coats for Dr Elmer

W. R. Kane
Chairman

Deer Grant of Myles only
in Business done

1004

Jan 1 Present Dr Kane in Chair
Dr Myles, Dr Donald

Dr Elston, Elmer, Combs, Holmes, Broth signed
also Application in Medicine
Letter read from Local Gov Board relative to a
Letter of Dr Combs to them, dated 27 November
Order that a copy of Minute made or may
be sent to local Gov Board on the reply of the
Committee. Dr Holmes Bill in attending
in substitute to Dr Elston to be sent to Insurance
in Payment Amount \$600
Dr Elmer Application for Vaccination 14
to Dec 03 Record in Payment
Dr Elston applied to have Ticket 1777 Cancelled
which on explanation was Cancelled

W. R. Kane
Chairman

Feb 5 Present Dr Kane in Chair
Dr Donald Myles

Dr Elston, Elmer, Holmes, Combs, Broth signed
Application in Medicine signed

Letter read from Dr Holmes to Chairman saying that he
had to leave town for a few days & appointing Dr Kane
to act in his

March 4. Dr Home in Chair
Present Dr Howard, 3 Myles
Drs Ames, Connor, Estlin, Holmes, Booth, signed

Requisition for Medicine signed

Report of Dr Holmes Vaccination Returns
in 72 Cases Recommended for Payment

Dr Home

Chairman

April Dr Home in Chair
3 Myles, Dr Van Fernald

Drs Estlin, Ames, Connor, Holmes, Booth, signed
Requisition for Medicine signed

Dr Connor Report on Vaccination and
L. G. v. Recommendation to Board of Guardians

Dr Estlin applied to have ticket 273 cancelled
as the holder thereof offered her Payment
in his attendance. Ordered that the

Ticket be cancelled, she not being considered
as subject for Medical Dispensary Attendance

Dr Home

Chairman

March 4. Dr Home in Chair other

Present Dr Dan Howard, 3 Myles

Dr Elmer Connor Holms Books signed

Requisition for Medicine signed

Report of Dr Holms Vaccination Returns
in 72 Cases Recommended for Payment

Dr Home

Chairman

April Dr Home in Chair

3 Myles Dan Howard

Dr Holms Elmer Connor Holms Books signed

Requisition for Medicine signed

Dr Elmer Connor Report on Vaccination Chart

Dr Elmer Connor Recommended to Board of Guardians

Dr Elmer applied to have ticket 273 cancelled

as the husband of herself offered him payment

in his attendance, ordered that the

Ticket be cancelled, not being considered

as subject for Medical Dispensary Attendance

Dr Home

Chairman

13
Minutes of Meeting held May 6th 1884.

Mr. Abraham and subsequently Dr. Kane and Stephen Mara
residing.

Present Messrs. Thos. Mc Mahon Cregan, Thos. Kane, Paul Bryan, Pat. Mulroy,
Bryan O'Donnell, Patk. Purdan, Mr. Abraham, W. Styles, Mr. Hosford,
John Mc Crahan, Jas. Mara, Stephen Mara, Michael O'Brien
and Jos. Smith - 14.

Minutes of former meeting were read and the ordinary routine
business transacted.

It was proposed by Mr. Abraham and seconded by Alderman Bryan
that Mr. Stephen Mara - J.C. be appointed Chairman
for the current year.

It was also proposed by Mr. Hosford and seconded by Thos. Mc Mahon
Cregan that Dr. Kane be appointed Chairman.

The Chairman Dr. Kane having put both motions -
declared the one appointing Mr. Stephen Mara carried.
Mr. Stephen Mara then took the chair.

It was proposed by Patrick Purdan seconded by Jos. Smith
and carried nem. con. that Mr. Bryan O'Donnell be
elected Vice Chairman.

Proposed by Michael O'Brien and seconded by Patk. Purdan
that Mr. Abraham be appointed Hon. Sec.
carried nem. con.

The Secretary was instructed to summon all the members
of the Committee ^{to attend meetings} for the future by circular or post
cards and it was decided that the meetings
of the Committee should be held on the first Tuesday

of each month at eleven o'clock in the forenoon.

It was proposed by Mr. Hooper, seconded by Mrs. McMahon began and carried unanimously that: "A cordial vote of thanks from this Board be presented to our late Chairman Dr. Kane D.P. for his untiring zeal as Chairman of the Limerick Fishery Committee for the last 20 years. and that a similar vote of thanks be presented to Alderman Myles as Hon. Secy."

The secretary was directed to forward a copy of the foregoing resolution to each of the gentlemen named.

The meeting then adjourned.

Bryan Thomell
Chairman 8/11

minutes of Meeting held June 3rd 1884

W. Bryan & Donnell V.C. presiding

The ordinary routine business was transacted.

On the motion of Mr John Ryan V.C. it was agreed by Mr Michael Brian V.C. that the hours of meetings of the Committee should be at 11.30. AM. on the first Tuesday of each month. A letter was read from Mr Ryan acknowledging the vote of thanks which was unanimously passed at the meeting held on May 6th. The meeting then adjourned.

Members present - Bryan Donnell V.C. Rev. D. Fitzgerald. John G. Wright. P. Moloney. Mr. Brian. John Ryan. Patrick Rindan. & Mr. Brian

Stephen O'Mara
Chairman

1/784

Minutes of Meeting held July 1st 1884

Mr Stephen Mara J.C. Chairman presiding also present. Rev David Fitzgerald P.P. Bryan O'Donnell J.C. John Ryan J.C. Michael O'Brien J.C. and Wm Abraham.

The minutes of last meeting read. Accounts for Vaccination were presented by Dr Connor. J. J. Johnston & Holmes and being examined, were recommended for payment.

Mr Lee submitted estimates of Medicines required and some conversation took place, as to whether the various articles should be priced on the requisition forms. But as the Committee ascertained that the invoices are compared both as to quantity and price with the goods ordered and the contracts, and errors if any, noted by Mr Lee on the invoices, it was considered unnecessary to place the prices on the estimate forms.

It was suggested that the Clerk of the Union should write to the several Contractors, requiring them to send the invoices in duplicate. as this he finds is not always done. Other routine business transacted and meeting adjourned.

Stephen Mara
Chairman

5/8 84

Minutes of Meeting held August 5th 1884

Mr Stephen Mann - J.C. presiding
 also present Rev D. Fitzgerald P.P.
 Mr Michael'Brien J.C. & Dr Abraham -

The minutes of last meeting were read. Also a letter from Dr Holmes, stating that Dr Graham would perform his dispensary duties during a few days absence from town. Dr Felston attended the Committee and applied for a few days leave of absence. Dr Burke agreeing to perform his duties. Both applications granted. A letter was received from M.A.C. Wallace Secretary to Special Sanitary Committee. containing an extract from the minutes of a meeting of that Body held on July 31st.

"That the Dispensary Committee be requested to furnish the Public Health Committee with a supply of Chloride of lime and three carbons of Carbolic acid" approved. and when requested to make out a special estimate to be forwarded to the Board of Guardians, estimated by Medicines signed - and other routine business transacted - adjourned -

sep. 22nd 1884

D. Fitzgerald P.P.
 Chairman

Minutes of meeting held on September 2nd 1884

Rev Daniel Fitzgerald P.P.
presiding

The minutes of last meeting were read and confirmed
a letter was received from Dr Holmes, Medical Officer
of No 3 District informing the Committee that owing
to a severe sore finger received in the discharge of his
duties he is unable to perform dispensary work
and applying for a fortnight's leave of absence. This
letter was accompanied by a certificate from Dr Connor.
The Committee accordingly granted the leave applied
for and appointed Dr P. J. Graham to act as a
substitute for Dr Holmes at the usual remuneration.
The Medical Officers books were signed and estimated
for Medicines allowed.
- adjourned

Minutes of Meeting held on October 9th 1884

Mr Stephen O'Mara in the Chair

Members present Messrs M. O'Brien & B O'Connell

Letter received from Dr Graham for
the sum of one guinea as remuneration for a
fortnight's duties performed for Dr Holmes

Referred to next meeting. Application from
Mary Hartigan for increase of wages. Referred to
next meeting

D. Fitzgerald P.P.
Chairman

Dec 2nd 1884

Brought forward Minutes Jan 6th 1885

Doctor J. J. Gelson's claim, for successfully
vaccinating 41 persons resident in his district from
July 1st 1884 to December 1st 1884. passed \$4-2-0

Doctor J. W. O'Connor's claim,
for 99 persons successfully vaccinated
resident in no. 1, district, from 30th June to
31st December 1884, Passed: \$9-18-0

Doctor Jonathon Elmes' claim,
for 261 persons successfully vaccinated
in his district from December 31st 1883, to
December 31st 1885, passed

An application from doctor Graham
for dispensary duties performed as locum tenens for
doctor Gelson during his illness from Dec 1st to
Dec 15th 1884. passed \$6-6-0

B. O. Phawell
Chairman

Minutes of Special meeting of Dispensary
January 21st 1885

Bryan O'Donnell ^{Esq} in the chair
Other members present. The most Reverend
Doctor Butler, Rev P Fitzgerald JP
Messrs W Spillane, J P. J Hastings J P
Alderman McRyan, Doctor Shanynessy.
J. P. G Smith, James O'Mara, R McQuinn
J. P. J Mc Namara, P. S. G. J Rush J P
J. P. J Mc Namara, J. C. J Gaffney J C
Mr Ryan, P. S. G. and M O'Brien, Acting Sec
Alderman Myles.

A letter having been read from
Doctor Jonathan Colmes, resigning his
position as medical officer of the 4th
Dispensary District.

It was proposed by Alderman
Myles, and seconded by W Spillane Esq
J. P. and carried unanimously. That
the resignation be accepted.

Proposed by Alderman Myles and
seconded by J Gaffney Esq J. C. That
Doctor Colmes be continued in office until
his successor be appointed, passed
unanimously.

Proposed by W Spillane Esq J P. Seconded
by Alderman McRyan, that the election of
a successor to Doctor Colmes ^{take place} on Thursday the
5th February at 12 o'clock noon, and that
we advertise for another medical officer in
the Munster News and United Ireland newspa-
pers. at a salary of £100 per year. vac-

vaccination fees &c.

It was also proposed by Alderman
Myles and seconded, Unanimously.

That in consequence, of Doctor
Holmes long and efficient service, we
recommend the Board of Guardians
to give him the highest superannuation
in their power to grant.

Bryan O'Donnell
Chairman

February 3rd 1885.

B O'Donnell, Esq in the chair
also present, M O'Brien, & J Ryan J.C.

Letter was read from Doctor
Holmes, applying for vaccination
fees, but in consequence of the small
attendance of members, its consideration
was postponed to next meeting.

The chairman drew attention
to the store room adjoining the com-
pounding department of the Dispensary.
It requires immediate attention owing to
a leakage from the water closets over-
head.

A quorum having formed, Mr John
Ryan proposed and M O'Brien seconded
that Doctor Holmes application for half
year's vaccination fees be recommended
to be paid.

Stephen Mack
Mayor

5/28/85

Minutes of Special Meeting held
February 5th 1885

Stephen Omara Esq Mayor in the Chair

The other members present were, Messrs J Spaight, A W Shaw, J C Delmage, J Matterson, G Harris, E B Powell, J Reane, J McDonnell, R McDonnell, J R Insley, Mc Mahon Ceregan, Wm Spillane, S Hastings, M Mannell, A Hall, J Frost, J Nash, P Moloney, P Riordan, Wm Sheehan, J Nyles, W Hosford, J Gaffney, C A O Hosford, M Ryan, J Enright, J O'Shaughnessy, M Ryan, ~~J Enright~~ B O'Donnell, J Nix, The Lord Bishop Butler, Rev P Meehan, Rev M Fitzgerald, James Omara, S Omara (Mayor) B O'Donnell, John Ryan, Wm Boyd, J C Kelly, M Meehan, J Mc Namara, R Mc Namara, R Holmes, D F Mc Namara, G Smith and M O'Brien, Acting Secretary

The minutes of the special meeting held January 21st being read and confirmed.

The Mayor stated that the object of the present meeting was to elect a medical officer for the fourth district in succession to Doctor Clines, who had resigned.

Mr Wm Spillane proposed, and Mr Bryan O'Donnell seconded Doctor J F Shanahan as successor to Doctor Clines,

Mr D F Mc Namara proposed and Mr Wm Boyd seconded Doctor P F Graham.

There being no other candidate a poll was taken. When there were taken as

follows, viz. for doctor Chamahan
 Messrs James Spaight, A Shaw, J C Delmage,
 J Matherson, G Harris, E B Powell, J Reane, J McDonnell,
 R McDonnell, J R Tinsley, J M Mahon Cregan, Wm
 Spillane, S Hastings, M Mansell, A Hall, J
 Frost, J hash, P Holoney, P Riordan, Wm Sheehan,
 G Myles, W Hosford, J Gaffney, E A O Hosford
 M Ryan, J Cherry, J Pharynsky, M Ryan
 J Rice, The Lord Bishop Butler, Rev P Meenan
 Rev J Fitzgerald, James Omara, S Omara, Bryan
 McDonnell, J Ryan, M Brien, 37

For doctor Graham

Messrs Wm Boyd, J C Kelly, M Meenan,
 John M Camara, R M Camara, R Holmes
 A J M Camara, G Smith, &

The Chairman then declared doctor
 Chamahan duly elected, upon which
 doctor Chamahan and doctor Graham, thanked
 their supporters, The meeting then separated

Stephen O'Mara
 Mayor

Minutes of meeting held March 2nd
1865.

S. O. Mearns Esq. Mayor in the
Chair. The other Members present
were the Rev. H. Fitzgerald P.P. J. Gaffney
J.C., M. O'Brien

The minutes of the previous meeting
were read and confirmed. The Medical
Officers books were signed, The estimate
of Medicines approved

The Rev. H. Fitzgerald P.P. and J. Gaffney
Esq. J.C. proposed and seconded the follow-
ing resolution.

Resolved, that this committee recom-
mends H. C. Selmes for a pension of £105 a
year in consideration of his long and faith-
ful service to the poor of his Dispensary
District during a period of over 28 years
Carried unanimously

Stephen Mearns

7/4/65

Minutes of Meeting held April 7th 1885

Stephen Murray Esq
Mayor of Limerick presiding.

Other members present. Michael O'Brien Esq. and
J. M. O'Brien Esq.

The minutes of last meeting were read & confirmed.
Medical Officers books signed and estimates
for Medicines approved. A letter was read from
Dr. Shanahan Medical Officer North District. to
the following effect. & ordered to be referred to the Board
of Guardians.
To the Secretary.

Committee of Management. City of Limerick Dispensary

Dear Sir. I beg to apply for a small table, a writing desk, and
two chairs for the Consulting Room at my Dispensary.
Dr. Elmes has informed me that the chair table
and desk there at present are his property
and has intimated his intention of taking them
away at an early date.

I beg further to apply
for a set of Midwifery Instruments, a stomach
Pump, an Emma Springs, and a set of Gum
Elastic Catheters.

There may be urgent necessity
procure these instruments at any moment
and I therefore apply for them at this the earliest
opportunity.

I would also ask the Committee
kindly to give directions to the Relieving Officer
or the Clerk of the Union. to have the
Notice Board at the Dispensary, altered

in conformity with the regulations

remain

Dear Sir
Yours obt. Servt.

John F. Shanahan

Med. Off. No. 4 District

Miss Hotel April 6th 1885.

A letter was read from W. John Lee, Apothecary to City Dispensary, complaining of the unsanitary state of the dispensary, and the Secretary was directed to communicate with W. Murray Secretary to Barringtons Hospital -

The Committee beg to call the attention of the Board of Guardians to a resolution passed on January 6th 1885 with reference to the salary of the caretaker of the City Dispensary

W. Shanahan

Witness my hand May 5 85

Minutes of meeting held May 5th 1885
Wm. Mahan presiding

also present - Rev. D. Fitzgibbon P.P. Jas. Mara. Wm. Woodford.
Other finance. James Smith P. Molony & J. Kelly.

The minutes of last meeting read & confirmed

Rev. D. Fitzgibbon P.P. proposed & James Mara seconded
the reelection of the present outgoing chairman &
vice chairman. The Mayor of London & Bryan O'Donnell
carried una. voce.

Rev. D. Fitzgibbon P.P. proposed & Jas Mara seconded
the appointment of W.P. Molony, to the office of Secretary
carried una voce.

The medical officers books signed & requisition for
medicines recommended

a letter was read from Mr Murray Sec to Barnum's Instn
on the subject of the City Dispensary. and the letter
referred to the Chairman & Secretary to report when

Dr. F. Honor was granted leave of absence for a couple
~~of~~ of days. Dr. Myles to do his duties
while absent. approved.
adjourned.

+ Geo. Butler
chairman

Minutes of meeting held June 2nd 85
The Right Rev. D. Butler Lord Bishop of Limerick
Presiding

also present Rev. D. Fitzgerald W^m Abraham
Thomas Gaffney, P. Moloney Sec.

The minutes of the last meeting were
read and confirmed

medical officers books signed
and requisition for medicine recommended

The Committee approved of the
room granted by the Committee of
Barrington Hospital for the storage
of Medicines.
adjourned.

July 7th 1885
D. Fitzgerald P. P.
Chairman

Minutes of Meeting held July 7th 1885
Rev. Dan. Fitzgerald P. P. presiding.

The minutes of last meeting were read & confirmed,
Medical Officers Books signed and requisition
for medicines recommended. Doctor. Holmes,
Comr of Station presented their accounts
for remuneration which were also recommended
for payment. Dr. Holmes complained that
a Red ticket was sent him by Relieving
Officer Dublin to attend a case, already
in the hands of Dr. Jones the ticket was
cancelled. He also complained that
persons were sent to him, who required
admission to the Workhouse Hospital
and he considered it not part of his
duty to recommend persons for admission.

The Committee were of opinion that the Relieving Officer should give persons applying to him for admission to the Workhouse Hospital, a ticket for admission to the home and that the Resident Medical Officer can then see if such persons need hospital treatment - the Committee however refer the matter to the Board of Guardians for their consideration, adjourned

D. Fitzgerald P.P.

Chairman

4th of Aug. 1885

Minutes of meeting held August 14th 1885 -
 Revd. Dowd Fitzgerald P.P. St. Marys
 in the Chair.

also present P. Moloney Hon Secy

The minutes of the last meeting were read and confirmed. the Medical Officers books were signed. and requisitions for medicines recommended there being no other business before the Committee, adjourned.

D. Fitzgerald P.P.

Chairman

sep 1st 1885

The Honary Secretary begs to inform the Committee that he attended as usual on the first Tuesday in September, and after waiting half an hour, no other member attending there was no meeting held, the medicine requisitions were signed by the Chairman ^{at his house} and forwarded to Clerk of Union

D. Fitzgerald P.P.

Chairman

Sept 6th 85

Minutes of meeting held October 6th 85

Rev. Daniel Fitzgerald P.P.

in the Chair

also present. Mrs R Quada & Gaffney

P. Moloney Hon Secy.

Doctors Gelston & Holmes were in attendance

The minutes of previous meeting were read & confirmed
 Medical officers books for 1. 2. 3 dispensary districts
 were signed. Doctor Shammahan did not send in his
 book. The secretary was directed to draw his attention
 to same. There was no requisition for medicines
 before the Committee.

Doctor Gelston applied to have a ^{ticket} ~~red ticket~~ issued
 to him by relieving Officer Coffey to attend Catherine
 Nichil of Thomondgate in her confinement - cancelled
 her husband being able to pay for Medical
 attendance ~~on this case~~, relieving officer Coffey
 stated that Nichil was unable to pay for
 medical attendance and after considerable
 discussion, Doctor Gelston withdrew his
 application.

The Committee were of opinion that
 R. Coffey did only his duty in issuing
 the ticket in this case.

Doctor Holmes informed the Committee that
 at a meeting of the Governors of Barringtons
 Hospital held on the 5th instant he
 was requested to attend the Dispensary
 Committee meeting today and to state
 that owing to the increasing work and consequent
 demands for space on the Hospital the board
 of Governors would require the dispensary
 Committee to give them up that portion of
 the Hospital occupied by the City Dispensary
 at their convenience. It was proposed

there was no tender sent in offering premises to the Committee for dispensary office in reply to advertisement adjourned

Bryan O'Donnell
Chairman

Dec 1st

Minutes of meeting held 1st Decr 85

Mr. Bryan O'Donnell in the Chair
also present Revd D. Fitzgerald P.P. Saint Mary's
Mr. John Ryan Wm Wm Hosford alderman, D. Ryan.
and P. Moloney Henry Sect. 7. also in attendance
Doctor Shanahan

" O'Connor

" Holmes

The minutes of last meeting were read and confirmed, medical officers books were signed, and requisitions for medicines recommended Doctor Shanahan sent in a bill for vaccination fees from 30th March to the 30th Sep 85: 160 cases @ 2/- each £16:0:0 which was recommended for payment. He also applied for the usual quantity of coats firewood pens, ink, blotting sheet, & a small quantity note paper & sweeping brush for the use of his dispensary which the Committee recommended to be supplied.

Rules received from the Local Government Board for the guidance of dispensary Committees were read. The taking of suitable premises for dispensary offices was before the Committee and after some conversation postponed for a month adjourned.

D. Fitzgerald M.D.
Chairman

Jan 5th 1886

Minutes of meeting held Jan'y 5th 1886

Rev. J. Fitzgerald P.P. presiding
also present Thomas Gaffney Esq. J.P.
P. Moloney Honary Secretary

The minutes of last meeting were read and confirmed Medical Officers books were examined and signed and requisitions for medicines recommended a letter was recd from Doctor Gelston dated December the 9th 85 stating in effect that he was ill and unable to perform Dispensary duty and that Doctor Browning would act for him, accompanying this letter was a certificate from two doctors certifying to Dr Gelston's illness. Doctor Browning sent in a bill for £6.6.0 his fee for two weeks attendance during Dr Gelston's illness the Committee recommended that Dr Browning be paid the usual fee in such cases, a letter was received from Doctor Shanahan complaining that the requisites ordered for his Dispensary more than a month ago were not yet supplied The Committee requested the required requisites be given Dr Shanahan at once, Dr Holmes & Dr Gannon & Dr Gelston sent in bills for Vaccination fees, which on ~~examination~~ were recommended for payment. Owing to the limited number of members present the consideration of the providing ~~Dispensary~~ ~~Officers~~ ~~was~~ ~~postponed.~~

adjourned

March 22nd 86

John Ryan
Chairman

Minutes meeting held April 13th 86

Rev D Fitzgerald P.S.

Presiding

others present Messrs. James O' Mara, Jeremiah Anglin, John Ryan, Thomas Gaffney, + P. Moloney. Hon Secy.

The minutes of last meeting were read + signed by the Chairman. After the ordinary routine business — It was proposed by Mr Jas O' Mara and seconded unanimously that the Chairman, The Right Worshipful, Stephen O' Mara, Mayor. M. P. The Vice Chairman Mr Bryan O'Donnell, and the Hon Secy. P. Moloney be re-elected,

Read a letter from the Clerk of the Union enclosing an extract from a report of Doctor Farrell's. The Committee discussed the remarks of Dr Farrell arising out of which a sub committee were appointed, namely the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Hon Secy. Messrs J. Gaffney, P. Pardon, Rev D. Fitzgerald to confer with the Clerk of the Union as to the best action to take relative to securing at once building ground for dispensary offices for the taking of premises to be remodelled to the requirements of dispensary offices,

Doctor Shanahan sent in a bill for £15:16:0 for vaccination fees for No 11 dispensary district which was checked by the Committee and recommended for payment;

Read a letter from Clerk of the union enclosing back for further report a bill

of Doctor Brownings for £9-9-0
 after some discussion. It was proposed by
 Mr. Thomas Gaffney, and seconded by Mr.
 James O'Mara that payment be recommended,
 passed,
 Proposed by Mr James O'Mara, and
 seconded by Mr Tho: Gaffney that The
 Committee do meet on the Second Monday
 in each month for the current year
 at the hour of 12 of Noon, passed,
 adjourned,

12.7.86

D. Fitzgerald P.P.
ChairmanMinutes of meeting held July 12th 86

Rev'd Paul Fitzgerald P.P. Presiding
 also present John Ryan David Begley
 James O'Mara SP Moloney Hon. Secy

The Minutes of last meeting were read
 and confirmed. Medical officers books
 for Nos 1, 2, & 3 Dispensary districts
 were signed, and requisitions for
 medicines recommended. Dr. Gelston Holmes
 & Connor sent in bills for Vaccination fees
 which were checked and recommended
 for payment. adjourned

Aug 9th 1886D. Fitzgerald P.P.
Chairman

Minutes of meeting held Aug 6th 86.

Rev. D. Fitzgerald P.P. Residing
others present Mr Thomas Hartigan and
P. Moloney Hon Secy.

The minutes of last meeting were
read and signed, medical officers books
signed, and requisitions for medicines
recommended. There being no other
business before the Committee the
meeting adjourned.

B. J. Donnell

Chairman

Nov 8/86

October 11th 86

The Honorary Secretary begs to report
that he attended this day for the purpose of
holding the usual monthly meeting
~~was~~ Mr Jno Ryan being the
only other member of the Committee
present there was no meeting held
the Secretary signed medical officers book
and requisitions for medicines

B. J. Donnell

Nov 8/86

Chairman

Minutes of meeting held Nov 8th 1886

Mr Bryan Donnell Presiding
others present Messrs James Omara John Ryan
P. Moloney Hon Sec.

The minutes of last meeting were read and signed
a letter was read from Dr Shanahan enclosing
a bill for £21. 2. 0 for vaccination fees, & also
calling attention to some repairs which he
thought necessary to be carried out at his disposure

and also asking to be supplied with coals
 100g. and half doz Towels for dispensary
 The bill for vaccination was found correct
 and recommended for payment the other
 matters ^{mentioned} ~~referred~~ in Dr Shanahan's letter were
 referred to the board of Guardians
 adjourned.

13th Dec 1886

D. J. Fitzgerald P.P.
 Chairman

Minutes of meeting held 13th December 86

Rev^d D. Fitzgerald P.P. Presiding
 others present Messrs Thomas Hartigan
 John Ryan P. Moloney Hon Sec, also
 Edward Clattery.

The minutes of previous meeting were read and
 signed by the Chairman. Medical officers books
 for 1. 2. 3 dispensary districts were signed and
 requisitions for medicines recommended the
 Committee recommend a ton of house coals
 for use of dispensary. the apothecary
 laid before the meeting a list of medicines
 which he stated would be required occasionally
 and were not included in medicine contract
 the list was ordered to be referred to board
 of guardians after some discussion on
 the subject of a list for dispensary the
 matter was further postponed, adjourned

Ryan Donnell
 Chairman
 14/12/86

Meeting held on Tuesday 4th July 1887.

The Minutes,

Mr. Bryan O'Donnell, Presiding.

Others present.

Rev. D. W. W. W. W. W.

Mr. J. O. O. O.

& Mr. J. J. J.

Letters were read from the Secretary excusing his absence thro' illness.

A letter & offer of Rachel St. Pierre from Mr. Patrick E. Bourke which was deferred until this day week. Also a letter from Mr. E. Clifford, Charlotte Gray offering to let it in his house there, deferred also until this day week.

Somana

14/3/87

That this meeting appoint a committee to select and report on a suitable site for the said dispensary and that our architect ~~try~~ be requested to send a report and estimate of the ~~of~~ same
All the members present to form the committee adjourned

Stephen O'Mara
Chairman

11/7/87

Minutes of meeting held on July 11th 1887

Dr O'Shaughnessy and subsequently
Mr S. O. Meara Presiding Officers present

Rev'd D. Fitzgerald P.P
" L. O'Shaughnessy C.C
Ald. Reardon

" Gaffney
Mr J. Herbert
" J. Anglem
Mr Hartigan

Doctors Nelson, O'Connor & Holmes were present
and Mr D. Coffey ~~were present~~
Father Fitzgerald objected to a report of the last meeting which appeared in the Munster news and said it did not fairly represent ~~the~~ the facts of the case. Dr O'Shaughnessy said he did not see the report referred to and said there was not the least disrespect intend to be conveyed to any person by what took place at the last meeting. Rev'd Fr Fitzgerald gave notice of motion that at the next meeting he would move that the resolution of the last meeting recommending a committee to report on a

a suitable site for a new City Dispensary
 be rescinded, Dr Holmes said the present
 dispensary was not at all suitable on a
 account of the want of accommodation for
 the different doctors, at present the three
 Doctors have to use the same room
 and when examining their patient all present
 in the room can hear and see what is taking
 place. This is especially painful when
 person of different sexes are necessarily
 present, Drs Gelson & O'Connor endorse
 Dr. Holmes views. After hearing the
 Doctors opinions Rev. Fr. Fitzgerald withdrew
 his notice of motion. The City was requested
 to summon a special meeting of the committee
 for Thursday next 14th inst at 11.0 o'clock and
 was also asked to invite dispensary site committee
 Rev. D. Fitzgerald Ald Reidon Ald Gaffney

Names of committee are

J. O. Hanna Chairman

Rev. Fr. Fitzgerald

Dr. O. Humphreys

Ald. Reidon

Mr. Gaffney

Dr. O. Humphreys

J. Herbert

J. Augher

Mr. H. O'Connell ^{Honour} Ballinacorney

Mr. M. O'Connell Creegan

David Keating Sealy

Dr. Holmes, Gelson, & O'Connor are also to be summoned

After examining doctors books 1, 2 & 3 and signing

same the committee adjourned

J. O. Hanna

14/6/87

Minutes of meeting held July 14th 1887
J O Mara Presiding
Other members present

- Rev. D. Fitzgerald
- Dr. O'Shaughnessy
- Mr. Gaffney
- " Merdon
- J. B. Herbert

To Beleye Sealy

Mr Gaffney asked the cost of present Dispensary. Mr Merdon replied £67 for the three places. Mr Merdon also said that he was informed by the Clerk of Works that money could be borrowed from Board of Works, at 5% to be repaid principle & int. in 35 years. Dr O'Shaughnessy said that apart from the benefit to the sick poor there would be a great saving to the rates if there could be got a suitable dispensary at reasonable cost so that all our doctors & officers could be together.

Mr Merdon said it would be better to pay even more for the new dispensary than the present, as the new would be our own for 35 years and also that we would be independent.

Mr Gaffney said it would be best not to be in a hurry about the site.

The Chairman said a small committee would be best to select the site. The Chairman & Mr Gaffney was appointed to select site & report thereon. Mr. Hennessy & Mr. Merdon and was asked the cost of suitable premises he said he estimated the cost at £1000 and if

would be to be had Storey so as to
 a comfortable dispensary doctor & caretaker
 the cost would be \$1500. old Gaffney
 mentioned Trulls bakery in Bedford
 row as central premises. The
 committee agreed with his view if it
 could be had at a reasonable price.
 Bedford

J. Humphreys

46.

Minutes of Meeting held Sept 17th 1887

Dr James O'Shaughnessy President

Other Members present

Rev. D. Fitzgerald P. P. St Mary's

Ald. Mr Gaffney J. P.

Stephen Haskins J. P.

J. C. P. Herbert

David Wesley Leaty

Mr John Coffey A. D. also attended

After the signing of the Dr. book and going through the ordinary business. The committee took up the special business viz the consideration of a suitable site for new dispensary. The Secy read a letter from Ald Gaffney giving the probable cost of purchase and alterations of Mr Loren's bakery Bedford Row, and urged therein that if it could be had at a reasonable price that the place would be very central. Two letters were also read from Dr O'Shaughnessy recommending as very suitable & very central as a site a plot of waste ground at the end of Lower Cornwallis St near St Pauls Square. He also gave the committee an account of a very successful interview himself and Rev. Fr. O'Shaughnessy had with the agent Mr Barrington who is agent to the Lord Simerick. He held out hopes to the committee that Lord Simerick would make them a present of the proposed site. Fr Fitzgerald said it was a pity it was not more central in St. Pauls parish but it was a great improvement.

not to have my ground sent to you.
 Mr. Shaughnessy said if it were removed
 down further it would be taking it away
 from Carey's road and vizes fields
 where there are a great number of poor
 people. Finally the following resolution
 was proposed & passed unanimously

Proposed by Revd. Father Fitzgerald
 Seconded by Mr. Gaffney

That the sub committee be requested
 examine into and report to a future meeting the
 probable cost of each of the three sites for
 dispensary namely Bedford Row Henry St
 and Cornwallis St & approved

Stephen & Maria
 Chairman
 10/10/87

Minutes of meeting held on Oct 10th 1887

Stephen & Maria J-C
 Other members present

Mr Gaffney

Dr O'Shaughnessy J-P

J-C Herbert

Mr Hennessy Rept. was present with the estimates of the proposed sites Henry Street & Cornwallis Street.

Dr O'Shaughnessy said the cost of Henry St per year would be £50 and he had it from the agent Mr Jas Wash, that it would be the lowest.

Mr Dowe, Mr Hennessy Rept, said that he estimated the cost of putting up premises for the proposed dispensary would cost from £1800 to £2000.

There was no estimate for the Bedford Row premises. The chairman said from the measurement of ~~the~~ plan handed in by Mr Gaffney were too small & that building as required could not be put up there.

Dr O'Shaughnessy asked to have the cost of each of the schemes entered into at once. He also said Lord Finemack through Mr Barry told him he could get Cornwallis St site for not more than 7/6 per foot frontage 45 feet by 100 which would cost about £6 per year. Mr Dowe said it would cost as much to put up suitable offices at

at Bedford Row as at any of
the other proposed sides

The estimated cost of the two different
sites were capitalized and it was as follows
Cornwallis St £2200 Henry St 3000 Bedford
£3500 The meeting adjourned to Mr
Hennessey's office at 4 o'clock next evening
when Mr Dowd said he would give an
estimate of Bedford

J. Hennessey

Minutes of meeting held Oct 17th 1889

Presiding

Mr Hennessey

Other members present

Ald Gaffney

" Ryan

J. C. Herbert

Ald Keenan

G. W. Wilson

& Mr Dowd Mr Hennessey's Rept was also
present

After the committee meeting at Mr Hennessey's
office and hearing the report of Mr Dowd
on the various sites suggested the
committee came to the unanimous opinion
that Cornwallis Street was the most
suitable site all things being taken into
consideration. It was then proposed by
J. C. Herbert & seconded by Ald Ryan
that we adopt Cornwallis Street for the

The Site of the proposed new
dispensary was passed unanimously
the meeting then adjourned
J. J. O'Shaughnessy

Minutes of meeting held January 16th 1889

The High Sheriff Mr J. O'Keefe Presiding
other members present were

Rev. D. Fitzgerald J. P.

Dr. O'Shaughnessy

Ald. Nicolson

Ald. Gaffney

Mr. B. Donnell

J. P. Herbert

Mr. Jas. O'Keefe

Mr.

David Keefe House

Mr. John Coffey R. D. was also present

The Chairman asked if there would be room
enough for the proposed dispensary in the
site at Cornwallis St without Mr. Guffney's
houses. Dr. O'Shaughnessy replied that he did
not think there would be room enough. The
Chairman then said that it would be a
great hardship on Guffney if he must be
evicted and he thought he should not be unless
his place could not be done without in
the proposed site and asked that the plan of
the site should be submitted to the Committee.
In reply to Mr. B. Donnell Dr. O'Shaughnessy
said it was decided to build in Cornwallis St.
It had passed the board of Guardians.

guardians and a lease of the site was being made out at present

Rev. Dr. Fitzgerald said that as the Landlord was giving the place free of rent and that in Guffin's place could not be done without that we should compensate Mr. Guffin for the loss he will sustain in the giving up of his house

Mrs. McFadyen who got an urgent ticket Dr. Hornor, ~~was Hornor~~ asked to have it cancelled as there was found with her £40

Rev. Dr. Fitzgerald said he considered her a poor woman as she had no other means to live on but the £40 and if the £40 was capitalized it would be only £2 per annum. The Committee did not cancel the ticket. The vacation tickets of Dr. Holmes, Hornor & Gilston were passed & signed by the Chairman

The meeting then formed themselves into a special committee & adjourned to this day week ~~for~~ to inspect the plan of the site the meeting then adjourned

J. P. McFadyen
 Secy

Minutes of meeting held Jan'y 23rd 88
Dr Oshamphunary & J-P Presiding
Other members present

- Rev'd D. Fitzgerald P.P. of Mary
- Ed. Keenan
- Mr B O'Donnell
- J. C. Herbert

It Jas. D. Meara. J. M. Wilson was
& Bishop Hon seely

Mr John Coffey R.O was also present

Mr. Hemmery submitted a plan of the site
with + without the space which is occupied
by Guffus house. he also stated that the
place would be too small if the space
of Guffus would not be excluded.

Mr. G. M. Wilson Clerk of Union said that
all the tenants were ejected at present
including Mr Guffin and that if the committee
did not take the site of Guffus house Guffin
would never get it again. The committee
decided that as Guffin was already ejected
and as they would in no way interfere with
him they decided to take over the side of where
his house is on.

Dr. F. O'bomer appeared before
the committee and asked to have the red ticket
he received to visit Mary Carthy Ballymore
cancelled. he said she was now dead and there
was nough of money to pay all her just
debts. Rev'd D Fitzgerald proposed that the
ticket be cancelled it was passed unani-

mously by Mr. B O'Donnell dissenting. The following
are the apartments which Mr Hemmery & G were
ordered to provide in the new site: Large
waiting room for women & children. small
waiting room for males closets & yards for each

consulting

Separate rooms for each of the four doctors
Boardroom. Rooms for apothecary to
live in W. C. yard &c. Three bed rooms &
use of board room for a sitting room
for R.O. or caretaker. The meeting adjourns
to this day week & allow the Messrs B. & G.
to adopt the best plan or means to provide
R.O. or caretaker with accommodation

Dan W. Bessley & cty

A. H. Thompson
Chairman

Meeting held January 30th 1888

Dr O'Shaughnessy presiding
Other members present were

Rev. D. Fitzgerald P.P. St Mary's

Ald. Gaffney

" " " " " "

J. C. - Anglum

" " " " " "

- D. J. McNamee

" " " " " "

Mr Dowe Mr Hennessey Rept. was present with
with an altered drawing of the proposed
dispensary offices which he submitted to
the meeting. Ald. Gaffney asked Mr Dowe
to explain to the meeting how the large
"waiting" was to be lighted. Mr Dowe said
it could be lighted from the sides & that
lights could be put so high at the back that
it could be lighted from the back also.
Ald. Gaffney thought it would be better
light it from the roof. Dr O'Shaughnessy
Mr Dowe would Mr Hennessey guarantee
enough of light Mr Dowe replied in the
affirmative. Mr Dowe was requested to
inform Mr Hennessey that till would not
suit the poor in the waiting rooms.

Mr Dowe asked to get definite instructions
about the dispensary doctrs & caretakers
apartments after the question being discussed
in which Rev. D. Fitzgerald J. C. Herbert W. B. O'Donnell
Ald. Gaffney took part. It was proposed by
J. C. - D. J. McNamee & seconded Gaffney that
~~propo~~ the plan submitted to them by Mr Dowe
may be adopted.

difficult discenting. A letter was received from Mr John Coffey R.D. Applying to be appointed caretaker of the proposed new dispensary - referred to next meeting

Old Coffey asked Mr Dowle how the building was to be ventilated. also how the four doctors rooms were to be constructed. The walls to be built to the ceiling. and asked him the thickness of the walls & reminded him that it would be necessary to have them as thick as that one doctor & his patient could not hear what would be saying in the next doctors room. Mr Dowle promised to attend to ^{the} remarks

meeting then adjourned

Thomas J. Moran
Chairman

14/4/88

Meeting held February 13th 1888

The High Sheriff

Mr S J Inara / President

Other members present

Ald Gaffney

" " " " " " " "

J. C. Anslum

" " " " " " " "

Ald Paul Ryan

Mr B O Donnell

Mr John McManus

Mr Doran Mr Hennessy Capt & Mr Wm Coffey

R O O and Jeffrey

Ald Gaffney asked how long the lease of the proposed dispensary site was for. Dr O'Shanhnessy replied for ever but the local government board required a certain number of years to be stated ere they would advance money.

The committee unanimously recommended the board of guardians to sign the lease of the proposed dispensary site

proposed by J. C. Anslum & seconded Ald Ryan. That this committee report the removal of John Griffin from his house and strongly recommend his case to the favourable consideration of Mr Barrington. Mr Dune explained the situation of apartment of office Board Room, waiting rooms &c

proposed by J. C. Anslum seconded by Mr Jeffrey. That Mr John Coffey be appointed caretaker & passed unanimously. Meeting the affair

Mr Jeffrey, Ald. Chairman

Meeting held 15th March 1888

Ald Gaffney Presiding

Other members present

Mr Tho Hartigan - F 6

Dr Geo Kelly

John Coffey R D

also attended

Ald Gaffney drew attention to the cost of Guinness and said he saw by an article in a paper lately that it could be bought for one fourth of what we are paying for it at present. It was decided to make some inquiries from Lee about the present cost. John Coffey R D applied to have a ticket cancelled that was issued by him to Dr. Holmes to attend Michael Meekans Crossafella as it was found out that the man was worth L 40. The ticket was ordered to be cancelled. The com. then adjourned

Cepherouana
Chairman

23/4/88

Minutes of meeting held April 27th 1888

The High Sheriff (S.D. Munn Presiding)

Other members present

Rev. D. Fitzgerald P.P.

Dr. Jas. O'Shaughnessy P.P.

Mr. Riddell

Mr. Ryan

J. B. Herbert

J. Wesley only

Mr. O'Shaughnessy Architect also attended

Arising out of the minutes Dr. Lee came before the ~~Committee~~ ^{Committee} and explained that the present price of Decimime was 2/6 per lb & it used to cost 2/0 per lb. It was decided to hold the meeting of the Committee on the 2nd Monday of every month at 12 o'clock.

In reply to a member Dr. O'Shaughnessy said that the lease of the proposed new dispensary was for 999 years. Mr. Riddell said that the local gov. board would not lend money on a lease of a longer term than 60 years.

Dr. O'Shaughnessy proposed that a lease in accordance with the act of parliament be prepared and approved of by our solicitor with a covenant binding the landlord securing an extension of the lease for 999 years or the reverse was granted by the landlord secured by Rev. Dr. Fitzgerald P.P. passed.

Dr. O'Shaughnessy said that this was ~~disputed~~ ^{disputed} expressed by the Guardians at the delay in bringing this matter forward.

Mr Hennessy submitted plans of the proposed dispensary with the General apartment for the doctors offices & board rooms which were approved. He estimated the cost of the dispensary at £2218. It was agreed unanimously to apply for a loan of £2000. If more was required it could be applied for when wanted. A number of questions were submitted to the Committee by the local gov. board in reference to the proposed dispensary which were duly answered. The loan is to be given at $3\frac{1}{2}\%$ & paid in 35 year principle and interest at 5% . The meeting then adjourned.

Referred to a Committee

H. H. H. H. H.

Minutes of meeting held on May 25th 1888

Dr. Oshanghnessy in the chair
The other members present were

Ald. Caffrey

L. C. Herbert

" " Hartigan

Jas. Wash J. P.

J. C. James D. L. Mac D. B. H. D. C. D.

Minutes of last meeting read & signed

It was proposed by Ald. Caffrey
seconded " " Mr. B. D. D. D. D.

That the city dispensary having met today to consider any tenders for building the city dispensary & not having but two before them, they think it prudent to give the other builders a longer opportunity of making out their calculations & with that view ~~as~~ they directed Mr. Hennessey to communicate again with the respective builders who may be disposed to tender & that we defer deciding until tomorrow (Tuesday, week end) that fresh advertisements be inserted

Read
June 5/88
O. Rowland
Chairman

Minutes of meeting held on June 5th 1888
 Ald. Keidou in the chair
 Other members present

Ald. Gaffney
 J. B. Hartigan
 Mr B. D. Dornell
 J. C. Suglen
 J. C. Jas D. Maca
 - - - Herbert

D. Kelly for Kelly Jas Wash J-P
 Mr Hennessy Ald. H. J. Ginnane & Black Union
 Mr John Coffey R-D also attended

The minutes of the last meeting were read & signed

Tenders for the dispenary being opened it was found that they were all considerably over Mr Hennessy's estimate. Mr Hennessy's estimate being £2218 the nearest tender to the estimate was that of Mr. Mollooy his being £2473. and this was more than £1000 less than other of the tenders. After a very long discussion the committee came to the conclusion that considering the time this work is in contemplation & the great necessity there is for it, and that there was no hope of they doing better by putting it off further also that the money required can be borrowed at 3½% which will cost £87 per annum for interest and that our present expense per annum is £79. It was proposed by J. C. Herbert seconded by Jas Wash J-P

"that we recommend the tender of Mr P. Mollooy for £2472:8/ be accepted & that a loan necessary for carrying out this ^{work} be applied for to the Local Board of Works passed ~~Ald. Gaffney~~
 J. C. Herbert

Meeting held July 7th 1888

Dr Jas Oshamphrey, ^{J.S.} Presiding
Other members J. C. - Jas O Maran
- - - - - D and Byley

The minutes of last meeting having been read & signed Dr Lee came before the committee and stated that the stone parapet leading to the dispensary is in a very dangerous state and that it urgently required repairs. The committee agreed to instruct Dr Lee to have the necessary repairs done as soon as possible and Mr John Coffey R. O. was requested to assist Dr Lee in getting a proper person to have the repairs done & to see that the repairs were done properly

A letter was read by the Secy. from Dr Tho Gelson for leave of absence on account of bad health, and enclosed a certificate from Dr Bourke & Dr Holmes certifying that Dr Gelson needed rest for at least a fortnight also that he was suffering from a very bad sore throat. Dr Gelson requested that the committee would recommend that his substitute would be paid during his leave of absence

Proposed by J. C. Jas Ollara
seconded - - - D Byley

That we recommended that Dr Gelsons request be complied with & that we think it is only reasonable that his substitute be paid during his leave of absence on account ill health
passed

The Committee recommend the Board of Guardians to apply at once for the first instalment of the loan to build the new city dispensary as otherwise the contractor cannot carry on the work
As ordered

Read at Meeting of Board of Guardians
Wednesday 11th July 1888,

Thompson Lawrence

Meeting held 15th October 1888
Ald. Rendon Presiding
Other members present

James O'Nana T-6
B O'Donnell P-F-4
D Whaley Secy

Mr Coffey R O also attended

Dr Lee reported Mr Baron dispenses any ^{power} had resigned & that John Daly was doing duty since the 30th August last.

Mr James O'Nana proposed that John Daly's appointment be confirmed, ^{at 10/- per week} Mr B O'Donnell seconded the proposition passed unanimously.

The committee also recommended that John Daly be paid seven weeks wages due to him up to the 17th inst.

Dr M. R. Connor put in his bill for one week's salary £3:3/- for acting as substitute for Dr W. Helston on sick leave passed.

A red ticket issued by Mr O'Brien to Mary Frost to have dispense any relief given to her was handed in by Dr Frank Connor and he stated Mary Frost is now married to a Mr Creamer, horse dealer & basket maker and is not a fit person for relief. The committee knowing the case & as the Dr stated cancelled the ticket.

A. Whaley
James

Meeting held 15th Octe 1888

Ald Rivordan. Presiding

Others present: James Mann, J. C. B O Donnell & 19

D Begley Secretary

John Coffey R O also attended

Dr Lee reported Mr Barron Dispensary Porter had resigned and that John Daly was doing duty since 30th August last and it was ordered that advertisements be issued for the appointment of Porter to the Dispensary at a salary of £26. a year

The Committee recommended that John Daly be paid seven weeks wages for acting as Porter since the resignation of Barron.

Dr M R O'Connor put in a bill for one weeks salary (£3 = 3 = 0) for acting as substitute for Mr Thos Gelston on sick leave and same was ordered to be paid

A Red ticket issued by Michael O'Brien R.O. to Mary Frost to have Dispensary relief given to her was handed in by Dr F. W. O'Connor and he stated Mary Frost is now married to a Mr Creamer Horse dealer & basket maker, and is not a fit person for relief. The Committee knowing the case to be as the Dr stated cancelled the ticket.

Meeting held ~~Oct~~ ^{Nov 12} 12th 1888.

The High Sheriff J O'Keefe Presiding
Other members present

- Old Keenan
- Jer. Anglin J.C
- P. Herbert J.C
- Dr O'Mahoney J.P

Mr Coffey ^{of Hartigan's} attended
B O'Donnell

Applications from John Daly & Charles
Lillyman for potter was read at a salary
of £26 per annum. Proposed by B O'Donnell
second by J. Anglin J.C that John Daly
be elected passed unanimously

Mr. P. Molloy contractor for the new
dispensary attended the committee and requested
to be allowed to have his name ^{put on} the
slab which he intends pulling up with
the name of the dispensary also the architect
name was granted. It was suggested
to have the names of the committee put on
a slab which is to be erected in the
large hall. Old Keenan proposed that
the ^{names of the} officers of the committee be inscribed
on the proposed slab. second by Mr B O'Donnell
passed unanimously. Mr Molloy stated that
he hoped to have the new dispensary complete
before the 1st March next. Mr Coffey
said that it would be important to have
notices served ^{on} of the parties we have permiss-
ions from at present so that we could
surrender them in six months. Ordered to
request Mr John Ryan J.C. to have the notices
duly served. Mr Coffey called attention

As the repairs which were ordered to be done to the entrance of the present dispensary Revd Mr Oshaughnessy objected to the manner in which the proposed repairs were ordered to be done. The committee went to see the state of the entrance and decided that nothing could be done until Revd Mr Oshaughnessy be seen.

John H. Drury

Read & adopted at Meeting of Board of Guardians held on Wednesday, 14th Nov. 1888.

H. J. Willard.
Clerk of Union.

A special meeting held Nov 29th 88
 The High Sheriff
 S O Inara President
 other members present
 J B Hartigan
 D Byler Hon Secy
 Mr. Hennessy was also present

Mr Molloy required gas to be laid on
 at the New City Dispensary and request
 ed a special meeting to be called for
 that purpose, when the above members
 attended. Mr Molloy applied to
 have the gas laid on he said he
 would give up the metre clear to
 the committee when the building ^{would be} ~~was~~
 finished. The chairman said the
 only difficulty he saw in the case
 was that the fittings may not be put
 in their proper places and would not
 suit ~~hereafter~~ hereafter. It was
 proposed by J. B. Hartigan & seconded
 by D. Byler, that Mr. Spillane be
 requested to have the gas laid on
 & that Mr. Hennessy be requested to
 have the fittings put in their proper
 places, passed unamously.

Wm. Hennessy
 10/12/88

Meeting held Dec 11th 1888

Dr O'Shaughnessy J.P. Presiding
other members present

S. G. James C. Munn	} Dr Present
Bryan J. Donnell	
Thos. Harman	
D. B. King Hon. Secy	
	Dr Gelston
	" Obornor
	" Holmes
	" Shanahan
	Mr. Hennessey C. G.
	Mr. Coffey
	Mr. Molloy

A long discussion took place as to the situation of the doctors rooms. It was agreed that doors be put between the doctors rooms so that they can communicate without passing into the hall. The cost of alterations was stated by Mr. Molloy to be £10: 10/- It was agreed that the doctors rooms were not to be heated by hot water. As to fitting of doctors rooms they require hot & cold water to wash basin table chairs &c. stretchers in board room, Dr F. Obornor said it would be very useful if a small lock up was put in each room to lock instruments &c. In reply to Dr O'Shaughnessy the doctors agreed to send in a list of the ^{required} instruments against the next meeting.

[Handwritten signature]

Meeting held March 11th 1889

J James O'Shanphersay J-P Presiding
Other members present

- Ald. Gaffney
- J. C. McMahon Cregan
- John Ryan
- Q and Bealy

R Officer

Mr O'Brien & Mr Coffey were present

Three red tickets were cancelled on the application of Dr J O'Connor. They given to the Madden Canal Budget Committee Paul & Michael Curran England. The doctor stated that all those people were able to pay in fact one of them had paid him already. All the tickets were ordered to be cancelled

Mr Mr Coffey M.O. stated that Mr Holloy contractor for the new dispensary requested him to state to the committee that the new dispensary would be ready for the committee to meet there on ~~Wednesday~~ ^{Thursday} ~~the 13th March~~ ^{the 18th March}. Dr O'Shanphersay ^{said} it would be important ~~for~~ to meet there, so as to look over the dispensary and see that everything was right and give directions about any thing that was out of place. It was proposed by Ald Gaffney & seconded by J. McMahon Cregan. That a special meeting be summoned to meet at the new dispensary on ~~Wednesday~~ ^{Monday 18th March} ~~the 14th March~~ ^{next}

Paul O'Connell J.P.
Chairman

18/3/89

Meeting held at the new Dispensary
Lower Cornwallis Street March 18th 1889

Rev'd Dan Fitzgerald P.P. Presiding
Other members present

were J. B. James & Maria

Patrick Hubert P.P. & G.

" B O'Donnell

D. Murphy Secy

The principal object of the meeting being
to meet the contractor Mr Mollooy and the
Mr Hennessy. ~~also~~ that they would
point out to the committee what was
required to complete the dispensary
In consequence of the sad & melancholy death
of Mr Mollooy, wife rather he nor Mr
Hennessy attended. It was proposed by J. B.
James & Maria seconded by P. Hubert & G.
that the meeting ~~also~~ adjourn until 12 o'clock
on Friday 22nd inst. The Chairman said
that if Mr Hennessy could not attend on
Friday that the Society be requested to
summon the committee any other day

J. Hennessy

Meeting held on the 25th March 1889
at New Dispensary Cornwallis Street

- Dr O'Shaughnessy - J.P. The chair
- Others present Thomas Mcmahon Ceryan J.P.
- J.C. Hartigan
- " Wm Ryan
- " J. Anglum
- " B. O'Donnell
- " D.F. Mcnamara
- P. Herbert P.L.J.
- Mr. Gaffney J.P.
- Mr. A. Hennessy B.G.
- P. Molloy Contractor
- Dr. Holmes Shamahan O'Connor
- & J. Lou
- T. J. O'Mara
- J. Coffey & M. O'Green
- D. Bealey from Secty

R.O.

Mr Herbert inquired why Mr Hennessy had not put the cost of the hot water pipes & boiler in the first estimate. Mr Hennessy replied that he had done so, and produced his specification in proof.

Mr Hennessy produced a list of furniture & fittings for the Doctors rooms also grates & other necessaries he was ordered by the Committee ~~to~~ advertise for the boiler & hot water pipes and a sub committee of the Institution began Mr Ryan Thomas ^{with myself} was appointed to purchase the grates and other small necessaries. A discussion took place as to who owned the old furniture

in the old dispensary, it was referred to the Doctor for a reply. Mr Hennessy said it would be necessary to have the pipe water laid on. It was agreed to have it done. Dr Nelson asked to give directions to the relieving officers ~~to~~ so as not to have relief given during the doctor's hours of attendance. Mr Bryan said the committee would do all in their power to meet the doctor's wishes. Dr Oshaghnessy said that every thing in their power ought to be done by committee, doctors & relieving officers to make the people attend for medical advice before 11 o'clock A.M.

Dr Shanahan asked to have publicans prevented issuing dispensary tickets. Dr Oshaghnessy said that himself would distribute tickets for Dr Shanahan's district, and he would not give tickets to persons for ~~colic~~ ^{colic} wine or oil who would sell it for drink. Mr Herbert said that now as the relieving officers would be living at this dispensary it would be well to send the people to them as they knew them better than ~~what~~ the committee did.

James O'Mara proposed a vote of condolence to the contractor Mr Holloy on the ~~solid~~ and melancholy death of his wife which was seconded by Mr McManus Bryan & P and passed unanimously. Mr D. J. McManus asked if Dr Lee was going to live in this dispensary. Dr Oshaghnessy said if he was requested to do so he would. A discussion took place about the appointment of Warden. It was decided

to adjourn the discussion until after
 the next appointment of wardens which
 was going to take place soon
 the doctors hours of attendance at the
 dispensary are from ~~11~~^{eleven} to ~~12~~^{twelve} am
 Relieving officers 11 to ~~12~~^{one}

Mr Gaffney said as this was the first
 meeting of the new dispensary ^{committee} he thought
 we ought to commemorate it by having the
 names of all the members who attended
 with the officers printed on vellum and
 hung up in the board room a friend to
 John W. Lanning

Read at Meeting of Board of Guardians on
 Wednesday, 10th April 1889.

H. V. Wainwright
 Clerk of Union,
 (John O'Mara
 Chairman

22/4/89

A Meeting of the City of Limerick Dispensary Committee was held in the New Dispensary House, Cornwallis street, on Monday. 22nd April 1889.

Present in the Chair. Stephen O'Mara Esq.
Others Present. Messrs Spillane, J. P. Alderman Gaffney J. P. John Guinane; J. P. D. O'Shaughnessy J. P. William Boyd, J. P. Bryan O'Donnell, J. C. Patrick Herbert, Jeremiah Anglin, J. C. James O'Mara, J. C. Edmund Hattery, Patrick O'Mealy, J. C. Michael Spain, J. C. Thomas Hartigan, J. C. Ald. Pior dan. Mr. H. J. Guinane, Clerk of the Union & Mr. John Coffey, R. C. were also present.

Minutes of last Meeting Read and signed,

The Chairman stated that the first business was the Election of Chairman, Vice Chairman & Secy for the current year.

It was proposed by Mr. O'Shaughnessy
Seconded by Aed Gaffney & Carried Unanimously
Resolved,

That Mr. Stephen O'Mara be re-elected Chairman for the current year,

Proposed by Mr. William Boyd,
Seconded by Mr. B. O'Donnell, & Carried unanimously,
Resolved,

That Mr. O'Shaughnessy be re-elected Vice Chairman for the current year,

Proposed by Mr. O'Shaughnessy
Seconded by Mr. J. Anglin & Carried Unanimously
Resolved,

That Mr. David Begley be re-elected
Honorary

Honorary Secretary for the Current year,

Mr. Bryan Donnell, suggested that it would be advisable to advertise for the Grates and Mantle pieces required for the New Dispensary Committee. The Chairman pointed out that at the last Meeting of the Committee Messrs Ryan and O'Connell were directed to purchase these articles. A discussion took place on the suggestion made by Mr. Donnell after which it was agreed that Mr. O'Shaughnessy should see these gentlemen & inform them of the opinion expressed by the Committee on the point raised by Mr. Donnell. With a view of having advertisements inserted, if Grates & Mantle pieces were not already purchased.

A Bill for £10.1.9 due to Gas Committee for laying down Gas Pipes, was ordered to be paid.

On the Motion of Mr. O'Shaughnessy it was agreed to hold the Committee Meetings on the first Monday in every month, ^{at 12 o'clock} The next Meeting to be held on the first Monday in May.

It was referred to Mr. O'Shaughnessy, Mr. Spillane and the Honorary Secretary to make inquiry as to the ownership of the Furniture & Fittings in dispensary at Barrington's Hospital, & to report on the Furniture & necessary for New dispensary House. It was ordered that the Hon Secy write Mr. Lee & ascertain from him if he is prepared to reside in the New dispensary House. When his apartments are ready for him.

A discussion took place on the supply of Medicines to the Workhouse & to the Reserve Dispensaries. Aed Jaffrey stated he intended to bring the matter before the Board of Guardians at their next Meeting.

John P. Drury
Chairman Board of Guardians

Read at Board Meeting

24th April 1889.

H. J. W. W. W.

Secy of Union,
24.4.89.

A meeting of the sub committee was held May 2nd 1889

Dr Oshaughnessy in the chair
 other members present. William Spillane &
 J. P. The Mcmahon Bryan & Mr Hennessy
 architect & Bishop Hon society

Dr Oshaughnessy said it was the
 feeling of the committee that if the gates
 ranges &c were not yet bought, that they
 should be advertised for. It was agreed
 to send advertisements ~~were ordered to be~~
~~sent~~ to the Munster News & Limerick
 Chronicle and Mr Hennessy to call on
 each of the iron mongers and describe
 the articles wanted. Mr Hennessy said
 the hot water pipes were already advertised
 for and would be sent in to the
 board of guardians on Wednesday
 Wm Spillane Dr Oshaughnessy & J P & Thomas
 McMahon Bryan & went to examine and
 report on the furniture of the old
 Dispensary

(Daniel Fitzgerald P.P.)
 Chairman

3.6.89

Meeting held on the 6th May 1889
at the new dispensary Cornwalls Street

Shaplan O' Mara J. C. in the chair

Other members present

Read - Daniel Hyguald. P.P. & Messrs Ald. John
Gaffney Ald. Purdon Dr. O'Shaughnessy
P. Herbert J. S. J. - B. O'Donnell J. C. J. W. W. W.
Bryan J. P. P. O'Leally J. C. J. O'Connell J. C.
John Coffey R. O. O'Donnell J. C. J. W. W. W.

Three tenders were received for gates
Ramps and mantle pieces. ~~the~~ from
Messrs Newson, Leonard & Hedder

The tender of Messrs Newson for 2 Ramps
~~and~~ at £7:15/ and eight mantle
registers at £9:10 were accepted.
Messrs Leonard's price for Ramps £7:18/
and mantle registers £11:0:0. Messrs
Hedder's price for same Ramps £9:0:0
and mantle registers £11:0:0. Messrs
Leonard tender for 3 Metal mantle
registers at 33/ each and 2 small do
at 15/ each ~~was~~ accepted. Messrs Hedder
price for same being 38/ & 18/ each
& Messrs Newson ~~at~~ 35/ & 20/.
Dr. O'Shaughnessy reported that W. Spillane the
Inventor Bryan J. P. & himself went to see the
old furniture at the old dispensary and
said it would not be suitable for the
new as it was very old and would only

re an eye sore They recommended that it should be sold. Mr. Molloy Builder said it would be well if the insurance of the dispensary was ~~effected~~. The committee declined to do so until it was given up to them completely but decided to ask the clerk of Union to advertise for tenders to insure it at £3,000

Handed out meeting

Report back to committee

D. Fitzgerald P.P. Chairman

3.6.89

Special Meeting held on the 13th May 1889

Stephen O'Mara Esq J.C. Presided
other members present were
Revd. D. Fitzgerald P.P. St Marys, Ald Caffrey
Ald Meador J. O'Mara Dr O'Shaughnessy
P. Herbert. B. O'Donnell J. McNamee
P. O'Reilly J. Hughes J. P. Kelly
Wm Coffey R.O. & Mr Molloy builder were
also present

The meeting was summoned to consider the tenders for Ramps Grates & manhole pieces as requested by the Board of guardians and they unanimously endorsed the tenders previously accepted

D. Fitzgerald P.P. Chairman

3.6.89

Meeting held 3rd June 1889

Rev'd D. Hyatt^P presiding
Other members present. Mr McMahon
Creegan, E. J. McManana, P. Herbert, J.
O'Mara, S. Hastings, P. O'Malley
D. Beatty - John Coffey R. O'Connell
Mr Molloy Boulden were also present.

Mr. Hennessey said the London and provincial
insurance Co's. trade was accepted at 1/6 %
for insurance of the Dispensary for £3,000
Mr. Hubert said he would see the agent
here and get a protection note. A letter was
read from Dr Lee saying he was willing
to come to live in the new dispensary where
his apartments were ready. But as he would
have to give up £25 a year with house rent
free with coal & gas he hoped the committee
would make good at least that £25 a year.

This Mr. McMahon seconded & P. Herbert
seconded that Dr Lee's letter be taken into
consideration and that action be taken thereon
at the next meeting. Passed.

Proposed P. Herbert seconded by
P. J. McManana that the corporation
be called upon to make a new or suitable
foot path in James Street from Cornwall
Street at the side of the new dispensary.
Passed.

Proposed by Mr. O'Mara seconded by
P. O'Malley that Mr Leonard be called upon
to supply the mantles and gables for which his
trade was accepted within one week from this
date and if he does not the secretary ~~to be~~

The Rev Wm Mason Bryan & the Messrs ought
 be empowered to get them from Messrs
 Newson - the contractor whose tender is next
 lowest passed
 proposed by P O deally seconded by
 Mr B A Donnell. That the fittings regard
 for the compound department & doctors
 rooms & board room be provided under
 the supervision of Messrs Bryan J F Ryan
 and the archt. Passed - The meeting
 then adjourned

Read at Meeting of Board of Guardians
 Wednesday. 12th June 1889.

H. J. W. W. W.
 Secy.

Read
 Wm

Meeting held on Monday July 1st 1859

J. O' Mara J. P. Presiding

Other members present were

B. Donnell L. C. Ald. Gaffney Thos. McMahon
Cregan J. C. J. Gurnane J. P. James Ryan
P. Herbert P. J. J. Aughlin J. C. J. O' Mara
J. C. Ald. Purdon.

D. B. By Hon Secty

Mr. Hennessy Archd. Mr. Hodge - Builder &
Mr. Coffey A. O. were also present

The Chairman said the principle object of the meeting was to take into consideration ~~the constitution of Dr. Lees~~

Dr. Lees letter which was left over from last meeting. He said his present salary was £100 but he was only required to attend the dispensary from 10 o'clock until 3 o'clock P.M. He now would be required to live in the dispensary and would be obliged to give all his time to its duties and as he would lose £25 a year on account of giving up his position at the County Infirmary. It would be only fair & reasonable that this committee would recommend that this £25 would be made good to him by increasing his present salary to £125

J. McCreghan proposed & P. Herbert J. P. J. seconded that Dr. Lees salary on 1st July be increased by the sum of £25:0:0 ~~passed~~ Ald. Gaffney & Mr. B. Donnell dissenting

Meeting of Dispensary Committee held
on the 5th August

J O' Mara I.C. in the Chair

Present Rev D Fitzgerald P.P. S Hastings Jones
O'Mara McManera, Holmes Hartigan
O'Malley O'Shaughnessy, Mr Hennessy,
Mr Molloy.

Meeting adjourned until Monday
Aug 12th

y. W. G.

J O' Mara
Chairman

5/8 29

Ald Gaffney moved the following amendment to the resolution which was seconded by Mr B O'Donnell

That we are premature at this moment in taking an advance to Mr Lees salary as our apothecary into consideration now. If he suffers in his position at the county hospital by coming to live in the city dispensary then and not till then should he be resupplied by us.

The amendment having no other supporters but the proposer & seconder was declared lost.

In reply to the chairman Mr Hallow builder said he would be prepared to ~~take~~ give up possession of the New Dispensary ~~see~~ at their next meeting in August.

Jas Ryan & P. Proposed & P. Herbert seconded that Mr Henry Suttons tender for two cart felled coals for ranges for £2:17-6 be accepted passed unanimously

Stephen O'Mara
Chairman

5/8/89

A Meeting of the City Dispensary Committee was held, at the New City Dispensary Buildings on Monday 12th August 1889.

Stephen Ollard Esq. J.C. in the Chair. ^{Alpro}
Other Members: Rev Daniel Fitzgerald, P.P. O'Donnell, O'Malley, Hartigan, Holmes, Dr. O'Shaughnessy, Hastings,

Mr. W. J. Guinane, Clerk of Union, attended,
Mr. M. A. Hennessy, Architect also attended,

That in the event of the Lf Board sanctioning the appointment of Mr. John Coffey, Relieving Officer, as Caretaker to the City Simeach Dispensary, he undertakes to discharge all the duties connected therewith & be responsible for the proper caring of the House. Duties hereafter to be more clearly defined.

Prop by Rev D. Fitzgerald, That the Caretaker be charged
Sec by Dr. O'Shaughnessy. one penny per week Rent; and be liable to dismissal with or without ~~notice~~ cause, on getting one month's notice,

Prop by Dr. O'Shaughnessy, That the Apothecary and Caretaker
Sec by Rev D. Fitzgerald. be allowed Fuel & Light. Separate Meters to be provided for each, The Chairman dissenting,

Prop by Rev D. Fitzgerald, That Mr. Hartigan be paid £4
Sec by Mr. P. O'Donnell. per annum for washing out the dispensary house,

The following Committee were appointed to select the Furniture required for the dispensary, The Chairman, Dr. O'Shaughnessy, Rev D. Fitzgerald, Mr. P. O'Malley & the Architect.

The Chairman & Dr. O'Shaughnessy were directed to procure the Surgical Instruments required for the use of the Medical Officers.

A Meeting of the City Dispensary Committee
was held on Monday. 2nd Sept. 1889

Dr. O'Shaughnessy. J. P. in the Chair.

Other Members: Messrs Gaffney. J. P. Hastings J. P.
Hartigan, Herbert, O'Malley. Daniel Ryan.

Minutes of last Meeting Read & signed,

Read letter No 33315. 89. 2nd August 1889 from
Local Government Board, requesting to be furnished
with full particulars, as to the duties which
Mr. Coffey will have to perform, as caretaker of the
New Dispensary; and the amount of Salary to
be paid to him,

It was agreed, that the caretaker's duties be
as follows.

Proposed by Mr Patrick O'Malley, } That Mr Coffey
 seconded by Mr Samuel Ryan, } get £5 a year as
 salary, in addition to the Coals and
 Light already voted him.

Passed,

Mr Hastings dissenting, as he considered the salary
 should be at least £10 per annum.

John Daly Porter, City Dispensary, applied for an increase
 in his salary in consequence of the additional duties he
 will have to discharge,

Postponed until next Meeting of Committee.

Dr J. W. O'Connor, was granted three weeks leave of
 absence. Dr Myles consenting to act for him.

Dr J. J. Shanahan, was granted a fortnight's leave
 of absence, Dr Fogarty to do duty for him.

The Clerk of the Union forwarded to the Committee, a
 Statement of Expenditure, incurred under the Medical
 Charities Act for City Dispensary District, during half
 year ended, 25th March 1889, Amount £350.7.3.

It was Ordered, That the following be procured for the
 use of the Medical Officers.

4 Pocket Cases, Barnes. Midwifery Forceps. A set of Gum
 Elastic Catheters Bulbous. A set of Silver Catheters,
 Ear Forceps. Ear Syringe, Guillotine Torsion, A set of
 Ferguson's Speculums, Cusco's Speculum Uterine, Sims
 Speculum Uterine, Urine Test case,

The following were Ordered on the requisition of the Architect,
 Zinc Blinds for the Windows of front and James Street &
 that Iron Spikes be fitted to lower Window open at Lane side,

Four Umbrella Stands and four presses, Doctors Rooms,
One large Umbrella Stand Board Room, Letter Boxes to
doors. Gate in Railing in front of House, Roller Blinds
for Windows of Doctors Rooms, Surgery & Board Room,

Passed unanimously
I think
Copley Mass
Chairman

7/10/89

Meeting held the 7th October 1889

S & man. by J. C. presiding

Other members present were, Dr Oshamphoony

Md Gaffney. O. Herbert P. Fy.

P O'Malley & V. D. Bepley Hon seety

Mr. Hennessy Arch. M. Molloy contractor

M J Coffey R.O. were also present

A number of tenders were received for blinds. The tender of Messrs Todd & Co was accepted being the lowest at 4/-

A requisition was handed in from Dr Lee for a number of sundry articles required for the surgery

They were ordered to be got. Mr Molloy to make those that were in his way and

a committee was appointed to purchase the other articles together with a number

of other sundries required for the Medical Officers rooms and the R.O.'s

office. The committee appointed were Dr Oshamphoony P. O'Malley J. C. and

the seety. The committee invited tenders for the different articles with the result

that Messrs Leonard's tender was accepted for the hardware. Messrs Heikie refused

to tender. The following tenders being the lowest were accepted Messrs McAlhany & Sons

4 Purses at 23/- each and tapestries at 3/4

Messrs Todd's for 3 armchairs at 10/- each

& 6 small chairs 3/- Todd & Co 3 Rods

2 each 7/- each. P. B. Ryan 8 day clock at £2-15-6. Dr Oshamphoony said it was impossible for the doctors

to discharge their duties properly with all the noise. Mr Coffey said that some change was necessary.

Mr Coffey also said that a gate was required at the foot of the stairs ordered, Mr Hennessey was ordered to have 4 iron guards put on the windows of dispensary at the lane side and to remedy the grating.

A discussion took place about Daly the hall porters pay & duties. Dr O'Shaughnessy asked if his time was fully occupied every day and was answered in the affirmative by Dr Lee. Mr Herbert said that as Daly's duties were increased that 10/- a week was not sufficient pay nor able to support Daly's family which consisted of 5 children his wife and himself. Mr Daly was called before the committee and was asked if he got an increase of pay would he stay in every evening and sweep out the dispensary. Daly agreed to do so. Mr P. Herbert then proposed and Mr J. D. Meally seconded that Daly's salary be increased to 15/- per week ^{with satisfactory discharges} passed. Mr Coffey carried was ordered to see that the dispensary be swept every day and scoured every week. Mr Coffey said the woman who kept the relief office in Kiltinan Street at 10/- a month would be required to get a month's notice that her services would be dispensed with. The Chairman suggested that she get a month's pay in lieu of a month's notice which passed. Mr Herbert said Mr Wash refused to ~~see~~ table

up possession of the dispensary premises
 in Nelson Street unless the whole
 premises were given up; the back of
 the house is occupied by Mrs O'Sullivan
 Dr O'Shaughnessy said that was a question
 for Mr John Ryan Jol. The Committee was
 instructed to have the gas laid on
 with suitable brackets & burners
 Mr H O'Brien was instructed to take
 what he required of some old
 lumber & Mr Coffey some more
 Mr P O'Malley J C proposed & Ald.
 Gaffney seconded that Mrs Hartigan's
 pay be increased to 57 per week she
 agreeing to scour out the dispensary
 every week passed. An order to have
 a new board room table procured
 passed. Mr P O'Malley proposed and
 Ald Gaffney seconded: "that altho we
 have this day defined the porter (Daly's
 duties in cleaning the dispensary as also
 Mrs Hartigan's in washing &c which is
 noted on our minutes of this day
 nevertheless it is hereby noticed to Mr Coffey
 that it is he that we will hold accountable
 to see its being carried out, and any
 laxity reported to the committee, passed

[Handwritten notes and signatures in the bottom left corner, including names like P. O'Malley and dates like Oct 21 1889]

Dated this 21st day of Nov 1889
 J. O'Shaughnessy
 Chairman

Meeting held the 4th Nov 1889

Dr O'Shaughnessy P. President
Other members present were
P. O'Leary P. Herbert D. Bessy
Mr. Hennessey & Mr. John Coffey
R. V.

Mr. Coffey caretaker reported that Mrs. Harigan refused to scour out the dispensary every week as directed by the last meeting of the committee. Her salary was then increased from £4 to £13 per year in consideration of her agreeing to scour out the dispensary once every week. She now said that she could not get it done for the money she was allowed for doing it & that she would not undertake it. It was agreed to leave her at her old salary £4 per annum & for this she must dust the doors & rooms every morning to put water in their basins & wash them out every week. ~~also~~ also to dust the relief office every day. It was agreed to give the caretaker £9 which Mrs. Harigan refused to scour out the dispensary every week. Mr. Coffey said he would try if he could do it. After checking a number of bills for sundries the meeting adjourned.

advised J. Hennessey
M.

Entered
13/11/89

Meeting held Jan'y 6th 1898

Dr J O Shanahan Presiding
 other members present were
 P O Meally Esq, L. O
 W. Bealy Hon. Secy.

Mr. Hennessy & all was not able to attend ^{owing} to illness, Mr. Molloy contractor & Mr. Coffey & I were also present.

Mrs. Hartigan applied for an increase of salary as she stated she has increased duties to perform since she came to new dispensary. Dr. O Shanahan had her called before the committee and informed her that the committee had no power to increase her salary, ~~and~~ her letter was marked read.

Mr. J. Daly sent in his resignation as porter which was accepted, and the society was directed to advertise for a porter at 15/- per week. The reason Daly resigned was to overcome some legal objections to an increase of salary which was recommended by the committee, on a previous occasion. Mr. Coffey complaind of the grating but over the hot water pipes. He said they had already broken in several places and that he had seriously hurt ~~at~~ his skin by the grating giving way under him. Dr. O Shanahan said that the hurt Coffey had received would not or could not get well until he would be up and fine at rest. The committee requested Mr. Hennessy to have this grating attended to at once. Mr. Molloy contractor handed in his account for £325: 14: 8 for extra work done outside his contract and handed in also a statement of Mr. Hennessy

stating that he Mr. Hennessy was prepared to certify for £257. 12/- viz £68. 2. 8 less than Mr. Molloy's claim. I annexed attached as a items of both Mr. Molloy & Mr. Hennessy's prices. It appears that Mr. Molloy's contract £2472: 6. 0 and the amt. of edna will as per Hennessy's cert 257. 12. 0 viz £2729. 18/- out of that amt. Mr. Molloy has received £2593. 17/- see memorandum attached leaving £136: 1. 0 due to Mr. Molloy which Mr. Hennessy will certify for and which the committee recommend to be paid on the production of such certificate.

The Secy. D. Bishop, said he wished to contradict a statement made by Mr. B. O'Donnell L.S. at the board of Guardians held on the Wednesday before last. Mr. O'Donnell stated at that meeting that on the previous day there was a meeting held at the city dispensary to vote away money. That he was never summoned to any of the dispensary meetings that he was not summoned to this particular meeting because as he said he would be an authorized member and he insinuated that it was a hole and corner meeting got up by me. Now I say there ~~is~~ is no truth in the statement that there was money to be voted away. I was asked to summon a sub-committee which was appointed previously to look after estates by Jas. Ryan & P. Acker & J. Mc Bryan C. G. with D. O'Shaughnessy. Mr. Molloy called & said Mr. Hennessy did not like to pass his account until checked by Mr. Ryan & Mr. J. Mc Bryan in order to secure a quorum I summoned some few others living near and the reason I did not summon Mr. O'Donnell was that he did not come.

into my mind at the time. There is no truth in the statement that he was never summoned to a dispensary meeting, ^{before} as I several times summoned him & the ~~assumption~~ ^{assumption} that it was a hole & corner meeting that I had an interest in is also devoid of truth. I flatly deny all the statements made by Mr B O'Donnell at the meeting mentioned. except the one that he was not summoned to that meeting.

I also deny that it is the Secy's duty to summon ~~the~~ committee except on special occasions, as each of the committee are informed by the clerk of Novor each year after the election of the dispensary. ^{comt} The day they are to meet each month.

A letter was read from Dr Gilston stating he was ill & that Dr Fogarty was doing duty for him and asking to have Dr Fogarty paid while so acting. He also enclosed a certificate from Dr Holmes stating he was unfit for duty. The committee recommended payment as requested. Dr Gilston has now resumed duties letter & certificate annexed.

Meeting held the 3rd February 1890
 P. Herbert L.C. Presiding
 other members present were
 Mr B O'Donnell J. Guinness J.P.
 J. Anglin D. Healy Mr J. Coffey
 R.O. was present

Bills from Messrs P.B. Ryan & P. Wilson
 P. McCullough & Sons McBurney & Co. Todd
 Limerick St. Ship. Co. for coal; Limerick
 warehouse Co. & a water bill was presented
 for payment & agreed & passed

A letter was read from the local port-board
 drawing the committee's attention to the fact
 that there was no midwife appointed
 for the dispensary district. referred to
the doctors. A letter was read from
Dr Graham saying Dr Holmes was incapable
 to do any thro. illness & that he Dr Graham
 was doing duty for him (letter annexed) also
 a letter from Dr Shanahan saying that he
 was ill and that Dr Fogarty was doing duty
 for him. The committee recommended that
 Drs Fogarty & Graham be paid the usual
 £3: 3/- per week while doing duty for the
 sick doctors. Three applications were
 received for porter to the dispensary
 from Mr Daly Patrick Blanchy & Denis Shanahan
 Mr Daly was unanimously selected on
 the proposition of Mr J. Anglin. The other
 applicants were not proposed. Mr B O'Donnell
 proposed that the society be directed to
 summon all the members every month
 by circular in order to secure a large attendance
 The society refused to do so ~~to~~ thinking

Meeting held March 3rd 1890
 P. Herbert J. B. in the chair
 other members present were P O Neally &
 & D Bishop society.

An application from Dr Graham
 for three weeks salary £9:9/ for doing
 duty for Dr Holmes who was ill, was read
 & recommended for payment.
 A letter was read from Mr P. Molloy
 builder who built the new dispensary, for
 testimonials as to his competency & the
 satisfaction he gave the committee
 the body was directed to request Mr Hemmery
 Archt. to give Mr Molloy the necessary
 testimonials. The body was ^{requested} ~~advised~~
 make a strong minute by the fact that
 the grating put over the hot water pipes was
 fragile, and has already broken in several
 places. The committee requests that it be
 replaced by stronger grating, as accidents
 occur the guardians would be held
 responsible, also to put a gate in front of
 the dispensary and at the foot of stairs
 leading to board room. The committee
 think the arrangements in reference to the
 people waiting ^{for medicine} could & ought to be improved.
 The com. then adjourned

26/3/90

Thomas Hartigan

Approved

16/4/90

Meeting held April 14th 1890

Ald O'Mara presiding
 Other members present were
 J. Guinane J. P. B. O'Donnell J. C. P. O'Dially
 J. C. P. Herbert J. C. J. Anglum J. J. O'Mara
 J. C. Ald. Herdon Thos. Gaffney J. P. Stephy
 H. Guinane Clerk of Union J. Coffey R. O.
 Drs. O'Connor, Gellston, Holmes & Shaughnessy
 were present

The first business was the election of officers.
 The Chairman & society said they held their
 respective ^{positions} for three years and said
 they could not see their way to offer them-
 selves for re-election. It was proposed by
 Ald. Gaffney seconded by J. Anglum that
 Ald. Herdon be elected Chairman
 carried unanimously. Proposed by P. Herbert
 seconded B. O'Donnell that Dr. O'Shaughnessy
 be elected vice Chairman carried unanimously.
 It was proposed by P. Herbert & seconded by
 J. Anglum that J. H. Lee. Apothary (City Dispensary)
 be appointed secretary to the dispensary for the
 year 1890. Passed. Proposed by Ald. O'Mara
 seconded by P. Herbert " that J. H. Lee be
 requested to take up his residence in the
 dispensary at once and that the increase
 of £25 per year already voted to him by this
 Committee be operative from the day he
 comes to live in this building. Passed
 The four doctors sent the following application
 Gentlemen. We beg to apply for some remuneration
 for the extra work we had discharged during
 the late influenza epidemic. The application
 is to be considered at next meeting Committee
 £2:2/ for Dr. Toarty for duty performed for Dr. Shaughnessy during
 his illness ^{passed} meeting then assured ^{head} Wm. Hartigan

Dr. O'Mara
 Dr. Gellston
 Dr. Holmes
 Dr. Shaughnessy
 Dr. Toarty
 Dr. Coffey
 Dr. Stephy
 Dr. O'Donnell
 Dr. O'Dially
 Dr. Anglum
 Dr. Guinane
 Dr. Herbert
 Dr. Gaffney
 Dr. Herdon
 Dr. O'Connor
 Dr. O'Mara
 Dr. P. Herbert
 Dr. P. O'Donnell
 Dr. P. O'Dially
 Dr. J. C. P. O'Mara
 Dr. J. C. J. Anglum
 Dr. Thos. Gaffney
 Dr. J. P. Stephy
 Dr. H. Guinane
 Dr. J. Coffey
 Dr. R. O.
 Dr. Drs. O'Connor
 Dr. Gellston
 Dr. Holmes
 Dr. Shaughnessy
 Dr. Wm. Hartigan

A special meeting was held on the 18th of
April 1890

Mr. O'Riordan in the Chair. There were
present also Messrs - James O'Mara, Patrick
Herbert, Jeremiah Anglin, and John H. Lee
Hon Sec

Mr. Lee reported that the Dispensary Porter
John Daly has been taken ill on the 14th inst,
and that Mr. O'Connor has ordered his removal
to Hospital as a ^{suspected} fever case.

Proposed by Pat^l Herbert -
Seco^d - by James O'Mara } That Stephen Coffey
be appointed during the illness of the Porter
John Daly, and that his remuneration be
fixed at the rate of 10/- (ten shillings) weekly.

Passed

May 12th 1890 O'Riordan
Chairman

1890

At a meeting held on May 12th 1890

Alderman Pioneros in the chair
other members present ^{Mr P^o} Jeremiah Anglin,
James O'Mara, John Guncane J.P. Dennis
F. McManara, P^o Herbert, & John H. Lee Hon Sec

The minutes of meetings Apr 14th & 18th read & signed -
The four Doctors Application, postponed
from last meeting for extra remuneration
for extra work done during Influenza
epidemic - further adjourned to next meeting
because of small attendance of members -

orders passed for

one Quart of Brunswick black
one cask of Chloride of Lime, one long round-
headed brush for sweeping ceilings, three
sweeping brushes, a 3 Gallon watering pot,
John Daly-Porter - assumes duty today -

orders passed to pay -

Stephen Coffy for duty done
in room of Porter sick for 14 weeks from
14th of April 1890 £ 2.0.0

also for

1/2 Ton of Fir wood from Male Prison £ 1.5.0

An order passed for metal hooks (two) and
pad locks, for keeping outer front doors of
Dispensary open during working hours.

M^{rs} P. Herbert & D. F. McManara promised
to bring under the notice of Corporation,
the flagging of James's St - side of Dispensary
the committee having passed a resolution
to that effect on 3rd of June 1889 -

The Caretaker John Coffey reports that the bed in which the hot-water pipes are placed, in main hall of building, is becoming a source of danger to health. No action was taken pending reference to Engineer.

Requisitions for Drugs having been signed, the meeting concluded

MA

Daniel DePuy

Wharman
June 9th 1890

June 1890

104.

A special meeting was held on the 2nd June 1890 - Mandate signed by Ald^{men} Pierron P.L.C., John Guinan J.P. and Pat^{rick} Herbert P.L.C. - to consider a letter dated 20th of May 1890, No 17826 received from Local Gov^{ernment} Board, in which they ~~state~~ request the Guardians to furnish them with a statement "Setting forth the reasons for the proposed increase in the salary of the Apothecary of the City Disp^{ensary} District."

Alderman Pierron P.L.C. in the chair also present - Alderman Thos. Gaffney J.P. Pat^{rick} Herbert J.C. The Very Rev^{erend} John Bourke P.P. Robt. McManara Sol^{icitor}, Jeremiah Anglin J.C. and John H. Lee House -

Proposed by Robt. McManara Sol^{icitor} }
Seconded by Jer^{miah} Anglin J.C. } That in reply to the letter of Local Gov^{ernment} Board (No 17826) asking for the reasons on which the increase of salary was granted to Mr. Lee, we direct our clerk to reply, that the increase was granted to Mr. Lee on the grounds that he would lose £25 a year on acct. of his giving up his position of resident Apothecary at the County Infirmary, and taking up his residence at our request, in the Dispensary buildings

Alderman Gaffney wishes to state his views - by way of amendment to the above proposition - why Mr. Lee should not get the proposed addition to his salary - But the Chairman points out, that the Alderman has already made such a statement - at the meeting held on
over / July 1st 1889,

and that the only question to be considered at this meeting ~~was~~ is, the reply to be made to the Local Government Board's Communications and accordingly ruled Alderman Gaffney out of order.

The above proposition was then carried Alderman Gaffney dissenting, and the meeting was adjourned

Read at Meeting of Board of Guardians
4th June 1890.

Wm W. Samuel
Clerk
June 4th 1890

A. J. Minard,
Clerk

David Belfry
Chairman
June 9th 1890

June 1890

Meeting held June 9th 1890

Davis Hefley J. C. in the Chair. also present
Patk O'Mealy J. C. ~~and~~ Robt McManara Sol.
and John H. Lee Hon Sec

Minutes of last meeting were read and signed
also of Special Meeting June 2nd /90 -

The application of Medical Officers for remuneration for extra work done, during the recent visitation of Influenza - and as journeyed from two previous meetings - was still further postponed - attendance of members being too small.

Requisitions for medicines, Medical Registers, and attendance book of Physicians were signed.

It was ordered, that some metal piping with a stove, lying in vacated premises in Rutland St - sh^d be removed to this place - that 3 or 4 pairs of glass sh^d be renewed, and that two chimneys sh^d be cleaned - That coals be supplied to Relieving Officer's quarters or to surgery according to requisition, and that the Clerk of Union be requested to order, or take steps, to have future supplies of fuel to this Dispensary made by contract.

Proposed by P. O'Mealy
Seconded by Robt McManara Solicitor
That Mr Hennessey Engineer, be requested to reply immediately, to a former resolution of this Committee, ^(January 6th 1890) calling his attention to the dangerous condition of the metal piping covering the hot water system - Passed.

Proposed by P. O'Mealy
Seconded by Robt McManara Solicitor
We, having this day examined the cellar, in which the fire and boiler arrangement for heating building ~~is~~ placed, and finding over

a quantity of stagnant and foul-smelling water loops there. We urgently require the Engineer to visit it, and take active measures at once to abate the nuisance, as it is highly dangerous to health, and that his report thereon be presented at next meeting, setting forth the cause, and the remedy he proposes to adopt. Passed -

The Carpentier having also brought under notice the defective ventilations of the large waiting Hall, and it too being referred to Engineer to report upon. The meeting ended.

Read
1/14/90

July 14/90

O'Rourke
Chairman

July 1890

A Meeting was held on July 11th 1890
Alderman P. Pearson in the chair - also present
Dr. O. Shanphrassy J.P., Very Rev. Dan. Fitzgerald P.P.
Bryan O'Donnell J.C., James O'Mara J.C.
John Guinane J.P. and John H. Lee Housee -

The Medical Officers Application relative to
extra duties performed during Influenza
epidemic, was again adjourned, as it was
considered that a larger attendance of members
would be required -

The requisitions for Drugs, Medical Registers,
and attendance book of Medical Staff were
signed - and the following accts were ordered
to be paid -

For bottles, Drawers &c for Surgery to Dr. Graham	£4. 1. 8
107 Vaccinations to Dr. O'Connor	10. 2. 0
109 do to Dr. Holmes	10. 18. 0
55 do to Dr. Cylston	5. 10. 0
Secretary's petty Cash acct	5. 7

Letter from L.G.B. No 22873, 17th June 1890, requesting
that they be informed whether Mr. Lee, the Apothecary
of the City Dispensary Dist, "holds any other ap-
pointments, and how much of his time is oc-
cupied in the performance of the duties of such
offices"

Proposed by
Dr. O. Shanphrassy
Seconded by
Very Rev. P. Fitzgerald P.P.
and passed
Apothecary, viz to refer the board to what already
has been stated - June 2nd ult - viz that we recommended
over.

"this increase, because of the largely increased
 "duties imposed on him by the necessity
 "of residence in the New Dispensary - which
 "we consider indispensable - and that by
 "his residence he sacrifices the sum
 "of £25 a year, which he had for discharging
 "some medical duties elsewhere, before
 "Dispensary hours, in the morning.

In reply, from Engineer, to strong resolu-
 tions passed at last meeting, relative to
 condition of Cellar at Lavitaker's side of
 building, having been received, the failure
 in this particular was characterized
 "want of Courtesy" and the following
 resolution was passed

Proposed by } That we have to express
 Very Rev^d D. Fitzgerald } our dissatisfaction and
 seconded by } surprise, at learning
 Bryan O'Donnell J.C. } from ~~our~~ ^{the} secretary

That our Engineer has paid no attention
 to a very urgent resolution passed by this
 Committee, on 9th of June ult, calling his
 immediate attention to the Sanitary Con-
 dition of the New Dispensary, we now
 appoint that the following - Chairman,
 Vice Chairman, J. F. Ryan J.P., Thos. M. M. Ryan J.P.
 and Bryan O'Donnell J.C. - form a sub-
 Committee, to consider the entire sanitary
 condition question, and to take steps for
 prompt action, and that they shall meet
 in this place tomorrow July 15th at 3-30 P.M.
 as ordered

Read

15
 Aug 14/90
 O'Rourke
 Chairman

J.P.

Meeting was held on Augth 11th - 1890
 Alderman Pat^l Pivodan in the Chair, also present
 Stephen Hastings J.P. Very Rev^d D. Fitzgerald P.P. The Very
 Rev^d Father Bonetto P.P. D^r O'Shaughnessy J.P. John Guinness J.P.
 Jeremiah Anglin J.C. Pat^l Herbert J.C. M. Hennessy
 Engineer & John W. Lee House Sec

After the minutes of last meeting were read
 and signed, the following communication, was
 read from L.G.B., dated 22nd July, 1890 No 28790

" Sir,
 The Local Government Board for Ireland desire
 to inform the Committee of Management of the Linnth
 City Dispensary Dist^l of the Linnth Union,
 that they have expressed their sanction to the
 proposal to increase the salary of M^r Lee Apothecary
 of the District, by twenty five pounds per annum

To
 The Hon Secretary
 Linnth Dispensary Committee.
 I am, Sir
 Your Obedt Servant
 Thos A. Mooney
 Secretary

The questions of the preparations of the Apothecary
 apartments was then considered, and tenders
 for carpentry, Plumbing, Painting & passed
 in ~~the~~ view, the following resolution was
 proposed by
 D^r O'Shaughnessy }
 seconded by the }
 Very Rev^d D. Fitzgerald P.P. }
 " Bryan O'Donnell J.C. and Pat^l Herbert J.C. }
 " That a subcommittee same
 " as already constituted -
 " The Chairman, Vice Chairman,
 " J. F. Ryan J.P. Thos M^r M. Ryan J.P.
 " be appointed to investigate and inquire into all
 " matters in connection with the heating of the

" waiting rooms, as well as, making all the
 " necessary arrangements for placing the
 " Apothecary's apartments in proper
 " residential conditions, including
 " papering, painting &c &c - Passed -

The requisitions for Drugs, Relief Registers
 and attendance book of Medical Officers
 were signed, and Dr. Shammahani's bill for
 vaccinations from Apr 2nd 1890 to 1st Augst Inst
 187 in all amt \$18.14.0 was passed
 and the meeting adjourned.

Read at Meeting of Board of
 Guardians, Wednesday 13th
 Aug 1890

H. J. Wain
 CER

August 12 1890

The sub-committee appointed to see that the
 Apothecary's apartments in the new
 Dispensary are made ready for occupa-
 tion, met on the 7th Augst. Alderman Jordan
 Chairman, with Dr. O. Shampson, Bryan O.
 Donnell and Pat^l Herbert, decided to accept
 Mr. Jussack's tender for Painting, papering
 &c @ \$21.18.0, and Mr. Todd's estimate for
 \$14.15.9.

21/8/90

Adapted

see folio
816 minute
book

Augt. 27th 1890

The subcommittee appointed to see that the Apothecary's apartments in the New Dispensary are made ready for occupation, met on the 26th inst. Alderman Pioroan with Dr. O. Humphreys J.P. and Bryan O'Donnell J.C. and decided to accept Thos. Shine's estimate for executing the necessary carpentry work at £6.10.0

Thomas Hartigan

Pioroan
Chairman

September 8th 1890

The ordinary monthly meeting was held on 8th of Sep^r 1890. Alderman Pioroan in the chair. The Very Rev. D. Fitzgerald P.P. Very Rev. J. Bourke P.P. Pat^l Herbert W. L. & John Guinness J.P. were also present with the secretary John H. Lee. Mr. Hennessy Architect ~~att~~ was in attendance and detailed the steps he had taken, and was talking to remedy the unsanitary state of cellar at P. Officer's side of building. The Committee expressed confidence that the Gentlemen appointed on 11th Ultimo, would do all that was necessary in the matter, and were prepared to await their report. It should have been stated above that the minutes of the last meeting were read and signed before the business began.

The Medical Officers' Application referring to their duties during the recent Influenza epidemic

was again brought under notice by a memo dated 8th Sept or signed by the four Doctors. The Committee, however, were unwilling to take ~~any~~ any action in the matter for reasons given at former meetings.

An application by the Porter John Daly - for £4.9.2 - ^{5/4} pgs work from 7th Oct-1889 to 8th Feby 90 difference of ^{and} wages between 10/- and 15/- the latter sum having been voted by the Committee on 7th Oct/89. It was passed, on the proposition of the very Rev^d D. Fitzgerald M^r Herbert having concurred, subject to decisions of L. G. Board.

The secretary read a letter from Dr. Connor reporting unavoidable absence for one week from Augt 25th and that Dr. Myles ^{had} performed his duties.

The Medical Registers and requisitions for a Drugg were signed, as was also an application for two tons of coals for the Apothecary's side of the building and thus the meeting ended.

Afterwards there was a meeting of the subcommittee - Ald^r Pionvan presiding, with P. Herbert, Bryan O'Donnell and Dr. O'Shaughnessy J.P. at which it was decided to accept Mr^s Leonard O'S's tender for £4.5.0 - for supply of trap work, latches, locks Bell hanging etc, this amount being less the value of a metal safe that the Committee could not sanction.

It was ordered that the Carpenter's cheque for £6.10.0 be drawn on the Meeting's work was over.

W. Fitzgerald
Chairman

13 10 90

October 20th 1890

115.

A Special meeting took place on 20th October 1890. The following requisition having been received by the Secretary

"To John H. Lee Esq. Hon Sec

for

"The undersigned members of the Dispensary Committee request you to call a special meeting for Monday 20th inst. 10 o'clock P.M. to dispose of that portion of minutes of our meeting held on 13th inst. in reference to application of Mr. O. Meally Engineer to the Sanitary Board for use of Board rooms for a time specified therein.

Boards of Guardians having refused to confirm same and referred to our next meeting for reconsideration"

Signed Thos. Hartigan D.M.C.

John McManara P.F.C.

Davis Byrney J.C.

David Ryan also

for O. Shanbhassy J.P.

for O'Mara J.C.

Limerick

October 17th 1890

The members present were Dr. O. Shanbhassy J.P. in the Chair, The Mayor, Pat^o O. Meally J.C., Thos. Hartigan, Robt. McManara Sol., The Very Rev^d J. B. Bourke P.P., Jas. Ryan J.P., W. Byrney J.C. David Ryan also, and John McManara

The following resolution was passed without dissent

Proposed by Robt. McManara Sol, and seconded by also D. Ryan

That the temporary and

over

October 20th/90

116.

"occasional use of our Committee Room
"be granted to J^r-O'Meara Esq B.E. Engineer
"to General Sanitary Board"
After some observations from the Chairman the meeting separated -

Passed J^r H. [unclear]

November

117

The Ordinary meeting was held on Nov-10th-1890
Doctor O. Thompson Esq J.P. presiding, also
present - The Very Rev^d J^r Bourke P.P. P. Herbert J.C.
and The Very Rev^d W. Fitzgerald P.P. with the Hon Sec
John H. Lee

The minutes of the last meeting were read and
signed, as well as those of special meeting held
on 20th-Oct

The Medical Officer's application, for extra
remuneration to cover the recent Influenza
epidemic, was again postponed - the meeting
not being sufficiently large to entertain it.

The Charwoman's application for increase of
wages - postponed from last meeting - was
again deferred.

It was ordered that the following be paid
M^r Mel [unclear], Painting, Papering &c £21.18.0
For Fire wood to Male Prison £1.5.0

The Medical Register, and Medical Officers
attendance book were signed, as were also
requisitions for 5 cwt of fire wood for M^r Lee's
apartments, and 100 yards of Calico for bandages.

over
=

Continued from other side

117.

The following resolution was unanimously adopted on the proposition of The Very Rev. Fr. Bourke P.P. seconded by Pat^l Herbert J.C.

That our Committee rooms "be reserved, in future, for the special use of the Committee, unless otherwise directed by formal resolution."

Mr. Lee having announced, that he had taken possession of the apartments placed at his disposal in our Dispensary, and had been living on the premises since the 1st of November inst. the meeting separated.

O'Rourke
referred to next meeting
of Committee
Chairman
by H. J. Jany 12/91

The usual meeting summoned for 8th Dec/90 - for which the Very Rev. Father Fitzgerald and later on, Mr. P. O. Mealy, J.C. attended - did not take place, a sufficient number of members not being in attendance.

Dec: 8th 1890
John H. Lee House
John H. Lee

O'Rourke
Chairman
Jany 12/91

The monthly meeting of Committee was held on 12th Jan'y 1891. The Mayor - Ald Pivordan, in the Chair, also present - Dan Clancy, John McManara, P. O. Nealy, David Hefey, Terry Pev^d, Dan Fitzgals P.P., D. O. Shanphrassy J.P., Patrick Herbert, Ald Gaffney J.P. and John H. Lee Hon Sec -

The minutes of previous meetings were confirmed.

The Medical Officer's application, calling attention to their services during Influenza visitation, was again set aside by general consent.

The resolution passed in Nov-190, reserving exclusive right of meeting in Committee rooms, being sent back for reconsideration at the Guardians request, the following resolutions proposed by
 Ald Gaffney & }
 Terry Pev^d }
 Dan Fitzgals } } That the Local Government Board be asked - whether it is the Board of Guardians, or the Dispensary Committee, have the power of granting permission to use the Dispensary Committee rooms, for other poor law business than Dispensary purposes? - was passed unanimously. It was also

proposed by Father Fitzgals }
 and seconded by P. Herbert } } That no impediment be thrown in the way of the Sanitary Board's meetings, pending reply from L.G. B to above questions

The Relieving Officers having applied for a heating stove, the Secretary was directed to procure one, at a moderate cost, and to see that the old flue piping be utilised, also, to take steps ~~that~~ to have hall clock put in order.

over

The following assets ^{were} recommended for payment

The Male Prison	12/6	E. M. Hickie	£ 9. 10. 0
To Doctor Gylston for 69 vaccinations			£ 6. 18. 0
" " O'Connor for 71			£ 7. 2. 0
" " Holmes for 104			£ 10. 8. 0

The following Requisitions were signed
 For Drugs - For two tons (vals each to Surgeon,
 Mr. Lee, and Carntaker - a 2 Gallon Tin vessel,
 two sweeping brushes, & two Pint tin funnels
 5 Cwt fir wood for Surgeon & the same for Carntaker
 also a Ream of blotting paper.

The Medical Registrar and Officers attendance
 both having been signed the meeting separate

A. J. G. G. G. P. 11
 Chairman

9. 2. 91

Richard M.

The ordinary meeting of Committee was held on 9th Feb. The Very Rev. Father Fitzgerald P.P. in the chair, present also Pat^r O'Malley J.C. with John W. Lee Hon. Secy -

The minutes of last meeting were signed and the following were submitted for approval

The Medical Officers' attendance book, and medical relief registers, as well as requisitions for Drugs.

It was ordered, that a mop & handle for washing purposes, and a floor scraper be procured and that Mr. Molloy the builder be asked to replace slates on roof removed by recent storm, and repair consequent damage to Gable roof.

An acct of Mr. Sexton's Lumber - for £24.15.9 was set aside for consideration by a future meeting, and a bill for coals, £4.12.0, from Clyde Shipping Coy, was handed to the Caretaker for enquiry, but Mr. Todd's acct £4.18.3 for window blinds was ordered to be paid.

The Local G. Board's reply to questions put to them by last meeting, having been read, and no action taken upon it, the meeting was dissolved.

Wm. Brown M.B.

Local Govt. Inspector

24 February 1891

1891

121.

The meeting of Dispensary Committee took place on March 9th 1891. The Mayor - Aldm^r - Pioroan - presided, there were also present - Doctor O. Shanphrassy J. P., Jeremiah Anglin J. C. and John M. Lee Hon Sec.

The minutes of last meeting having been read and signed - Dr. O. Shanphrassy proposed and M^r Anglin seconded the following resolutions

"Having heard the minutes of last meeting read, by which it appears, that a bill, for adjustment of heating apparatus for the Hall in which the sick poor sit, was adjourned for future consideration, I beg to move that the payment be further postponed, till it is ascertained how it comes, that the Hall is still unheated."

A letter was read from Dr. Holmes stating that he was unable to perform his duties owing to very severe accidental injury to a hip joint - on 12th Feb'y ult. and nominating Dr. Graham as substitute. There was a general expression of regret, while M^r Anglin proposed and Dr. O. Shanphrassy seconded

"That Dr. Graham be appointed for Term acting for Dr. Holmes, at the usual remuneration, to date from 12th Feb'y 1891"

The following was read - We the undersigned Medical Officers beg to call the attention of the Committee to the urgent want of a pair and qualified midwife for Nos 1 and 2 Dispensary Districts, and another for Nos 3 & 4 - These appointments have become an absolute necessity in the interests of the sick poor

March 9th /91 signed J. J. Gledhill M.D.
J. W. O'Connor F.P.C.S.I

over

It was proposed by Dr. O'Shaughnessy, seconded by Mr. Anglin, and passed, that two midwives be appointed, according to recommendations of L. G. Woods on 3rd of Feby 1890, and that of medical officers of this date, and that the Clerk issue the necessary advertisement.

A letter from L. G. W. No 9. 987. 1891 was read, calling attention to following extract from Dr. Brown's report dated 2nd March 91

"I would suggest that a room be set apart for vaccination purposes at the Dispensary, in order to obviate the necessity of children attending for the purpose of being vaccinated having to remain in the same apartment with the Dispensary patients - Referred to medical officers for report."

An application from Charwomen for increased wages was marked "Read". Two Cent-Philisias ^{ordered}

The following acts were recommended for payment:

To Gas Co ^y for Gas fittings	\$5. 7. 14
To Steam Ship Co ^y for Coals	to 4. 12. 0
Male Prison for Fire wood	to 1. 5. 0

Requisitions for Drugs, For 2 tons Coals for Surgery, and 5 Cent Fire wood for Mr. Lee, were signed, as were also the medical requisitions, and medical officer's Attendance book, and the meeting was adjourned.

Read & passed
 & the Dismissal
 to Council
 J. O'Shaughnessy
 J. Anglin

11th March 1891

[Signature]

1891

123.

A special meeting of committee was held here ~~at~~ City Dispensary on 3rd April 1911. Doctor O. Shanphrassy in the Chair. also present Jerome Conihans I.P., Davis Bayly J.C. B. O'Donnell J.C. M. Spain, John G. Kelly, Pat^r Mc'Donnell I.P., John Quinane I.P., Patrick Herbert, Thomas Hartigan, James O'Mara pro M^r O'Mara, Alderman O'Mara, J. Anglin, Pat^r Connolly, Pat^r O'Meally, Peter Fitzgerald and John H. Lee Housee.

The following letter was read
" My dear Lee - I find I am laid up with a
" severe cold, and cannot attend the dispensary.
" I have recommended Dr. Mylo to take up the
" duty. You can look after the registration. It
" will be necessary to have a few members of com-
" mittee called together, and have Dr. Mylo appointed
" in the usual way. Dr. Cylator will give a
" medical certificate

Y^rs faithfully

J.W. O'Connor

17th March 1911

72 George St
Liverpool

The following resolution proposed by Dr. O. Shanphrassy, seconded by John Quinane I.P. was passed unanimously - "We the members of the City Dispensary Committee, take this early occasion to express our very deep regret at the death of our lamented fellow Citizen Dr. Francis W. O'Connor, and to convey to M^rs O'Connor and her dear children our unfeigned and sincere sympathy in their bereavement, in the loss of an affectionate husband and a devoted father.

"It must be some alleviation to them in this their hour of sorrow and affliction to know how universal was the regret in this City for his loss.

"by all classes, and by none more than the
 "families of the poor, whose good opinions and
 "affections he so well earned by his invariable
 "kindness, gentleness, and professional services,
 "during the many years of his connection
 "with this dispensary

It was proposed by Dr. M^c Donnell, and
 seconded by Jeremiah Anglin that Doctor
 Frank O'Mara be appointed Medical Officer
 "pro tem" to No. 1 Dispensary District at
 the usual remuneration, and that ^{an} advertise-
 ment be sent to the local papers, as well as to
 the General Advertiser, that a duly qualified
 person will be elected on the 11th day of May
 1891. passed -

Read
 O'Rourke
 Chairman
 May 15th 1891

Read in Committee
 O'Rourke
 Chairman
 May 11/91

LIMERICK UNION
 DISPENSARY
 The person appointed must possess the qualifications laid down by the Local Government Board, and reside in the district or the centre of the District. He will be required at his own expense to provide and pay a properly qualified substitute in case he should absent himself from duty, and attend at Sanitary Prosecutions without any special fee save his salary as Medical Officer of Health; he will also be required to attend at Prosecutions under the Vaccination Act.
 Applications with copies of Testimonials addressed to the Dispensary, will be received up to Ten A.M. on the day of election, when the Candidates must be in attendance at the Dispensary.—By Order,
 JOHN H. LEE, Hon Sec.
 The Limerick City Dispensary,
 April 21st, 1891.

A Meeting of Dispensary Committee was held in Cornwallis St on Monday 11th of May 1891 at 12 O.C.

The following members were present—James Shine, Sir James Spaight, James Nash, J. B. Harrington,

Jas G. Barry, Peter Fitzgeralds, Rich^d Troy, Pat^l Herbert, Tho^s Gaffney, E. H. P. Hosford, Pat^l Jordan, J. Anglin, S. Hastings, Jas^s Guinness, W. J. O'Donnell, J. G. M. Kennedy, D. M^c Namara, John M^c Namara, The Most Rev^d Dr O'Dwyer, Rev^d D. Fitzgeralds, Pat^l O'Mealy, D. Bealey, P. M^c Namara, Edw^d Tobin, John Clune, J. C. Delaney, James Frost, J. M^c M. Ryan, P. L. Browne, S. B. Guinness, J. O. G. Delaney, O. Wallace, David Ryan, Rev^d J. Bourke, J. G. Kelly, David F. Gabbett, A. W. Shaw, P. M^c Donnell, John Guinane, Jerome Conihan, Dr O'Shaughnessy, Bryan O'Donnell, W^m Abraham, Tho^s Hartigan, James O'Mara, Mich^l Spain, David Clancy, W^m Spillane and John H. Lee Hon Sec. with Henry Guinane Clerk of Union.

It was proposed by Sir J. Spaight and seconded by Rev D. Fitzgerald, that Ald^r Jordan be re-elected Chairman, that Dr O'Shaughnessy be re-elected Vice Chairman, and that John H. Lee be re-elected Hon Sec for the ensuing 12 months, each name having been submitted separately to the meeting ~~was~~ ^{was} unanimously sanctioned.

The minutes of special meeting (3rd April) having been read and confirmed, the following letter was ordered to be inserted upon the minutes.

72 Groyne St

May 5th 1891

"Dear M^r Lee"

"I am sure I can count on your kind-
 ness, and that of the Committee, to excuse me for

" not having before this written to thank them
 " for their very kind expressions of sympathy.

" If anything could afford consolation in
 " sorrow like mine, it would be the assurance
 " that my dear husband's love for the poor, and
 " his devoted attention to their needs was appreciated
 " by his fellow Citizens, and particularly by those
 " who make the needs of the poor their special
 " care. You will, dear M^r Lee, kindly convey
 " to those gentlemen the very sincere thanks of
 " myself and my children for their kindly
 " sympathy

Believe me

Y^r sincerely

"Ellie M. O'Connor"

also read

Limerick May 3rd / 91

My dear Lee

I have a regular attack of In-
 fluenza, and am confined to bed, unable to do
 anything. Dr Myles will act for me at the
 Dispensary. I enclose Medical Certificate
 and will ask the Committee to pay my substitute

To John M. Lee Esq

Y^r or

J. S. J. Gelston M.D.

The Honorary ~~secretary~~ announced that Doctor
 Gelston had this day resumed duty.

The following report of Dr. Barone L. G. B. In-
 spector was sent by the Clerk of Union with
 a request that it be read

"The Dispensary building has been recently
 " provided for the purpose and is suitable. It is not,
 " however, kept as clean as could be desired, par-
 " ticularly the Waiting Rooms, and Closets. The atmosphere
 " of the

"Waiting Room is very foul and disagreeable owing
 "to the number of persons attending daily, and
 "I would recommend that better provision be made
 "for ventilation, and that it be cleaned out daily,
 "and disinfectants freely used, such as Carbolic
 "Powder sprinkled over the floor.

No 2 District - Vaccination appears to be carried out
 "in this district, except as regards the children born
 "in the Workhouse. There were 62 children born in
 "the Workhouse since last inspection in October
 "1889, none of whom have been vaccinated accounted
 "for as regards vaccination, and the Med Officer states
 "that he never receives any vaccination returns
 "from the Workhouse, or of children born in it.

No 4 District -

Vaccination does not appear to be pro-
 "perly carried out in the District. There are about
 "200 vaccinations defaulters in the District.
 "Compliance with the provisions of the Compulsory
 "Vaccination Act not enforced by the Guardians.
 "Vaccination is delayed beyond the prescribed age.
 "Dr. Browne considers that the services of a
 "midwife are urgently required in the Limerick
 "Dispensary District -

Local Government Board

Dublin April 28th 1891

Sir,

I am directed by the L. G. B. for Ireland to forward
 for the information of the Committee of Management of
 the Limerick Dispensary District of the Limerick
 Union the accompanying copy of a letter which the
 Board have addressed to the Guardians relative to the
 salaries which may be fixed for the midwives

appointed for the Districts

I am Sir
 yr obt^l servant
 To John W. Lee Esq
 Hon Secy
 Lim^l Dist^l Committee
 D. J. Mac Sheahan
 Asst^l Secretary

Copy of letter referred to above
 Local Govt^l Board
 Dublin 28th April 1891
 No 11. 679/91
 Limerick Union

Sir, With reference to the entry con-
 tained in the minutes of Proceedings of the Board of
 Guardians of Limerick Union on the 11th ultimo on
 the subject, I am directed by the Local Government
 Board for Ireland to request that the Guardians
 will be so good as to name the salaries they recom-
 mend should be fixed for the Midwives proposed
 to be appointed for the Limerick Districts in
 accordance with Article 12 of the Gen^l Regulations

I am Sir
 yr obt^l St-
 To The Clerk
 Lim^l Union
 D. J. Mac Sheahan
 Asst^l Secretary

Doctor Brown's report with the above com-
 munications were postponed to next meeting
 for consideration

The Election of Medical Officers for No 1 District
 was then proceeded with. There were five
 candidates, James G. Boyce, 10 Redcliffe Parade E.
 Bristol, Dr Graham, 142 Thomas St, Limerick,
 Dr Nolan, The Union Workhouse, Dr Pioran of
 Harrington's Hospital City, & Dr O'Meara, 12 Cecil St, City.

Lords

All the candidates having their diplomas and testimonials - except D^r Boyce - were in attendance. D^r Riordan Proposed by Sir J^o Spaight seconded by James G. Barry. D^r Graham Proposed by The Most Rev^d D^r O'Dwyer & seconded M^r D. Kealey. D^r Nolan Proposed by M^r J^o Frost 2nd by Rev^d Joseph Bourke P.P. and D^r O'Mara Proposed by D^r O'Shaughnessy seconded by Robt M^r Donnell.

First Poll -

<u>Riordan</u>	<u>Graham</u>	<u>Nolan</u>	<u>O'Mara</u>
J ^o Shine	S. Hastings	J. C. Delaney	J. G. Kelly
Sir J ^o Spaight	J ^o Quinn	pro Frost	D. F. Gabbitt
J ^o Nash	W. J. Donnell	J. M ^r M. Ryan	A. W. Shaw
J. B. Barrington	F. G. M. Kennedy	R. L. Browne	R. M ^r Donnell
J ^o G. Barry	D. P. M ^r Namara	S. B. Quinn	pro Guinness
Peter Fitzgals	pro M ^r Namara	J. C. Delaney	Jer ^m Conihan
Rich ^d Troy	D ^r O'Dwyer	O. Wallace	D ^r O'Shaughnessy
P ^{ll} Herbert	Rev ^d D. Fitzgals	Dan Ryan	W. O'Donnell
Thos Gaffney	P ^{ll} O'nealy	Rev ^d J ^o Bourke	W ^m Abraham
E. H. P. Horsford	D. Kealey		Thos Hartigan
P ^{ll} Riordan	R. M ^r Namara		J. O'Mara
Je ^r Anglin	E ^d Tobin		Michl Spain
	pro Lane		Dan ^e Clancy
(12)	(13)	(9)	(13)

M^r Spillane, declined to vote

Second Poll -

<u>O'Mara</u>	J. G. Kelly, D. F. Gabbitt, J. M ^r M. Ryan, A. W. Shaw, R. M ^r Donnell, pro Guinness, Jerome Conihan, S. B. Quinn, J ^o O'Shaughnessy, Dan Ryan, Bryan O'Donnell, W ^m Abraham, Thos Hartigan, J ^o O'Mara, Michl Spain, Rev ^d J. Bourke, (16)
<u>Riordan</u>	J ^o Shine, pro J. Delaney, Sir J. Spaight, James Nash, J. B. Barrington, J ^o G. Barry, R. L. Browne, J ^o O. C. Delaney, Peter Fitzgals, Rich ^d Troy, Pat ^{ll} Herbert, Thos Gaffney, E. H. P. Horsford, Pat ^{ll} Riordan, Je ^r Anglin, (15)

Gratiam - J^r Frost, S. Hastings, James Zinn,
 W^m J. O'Donnell, F. G. M. Kennedy, D. F. M^e Namara, John
 M^e Namara, David Gauley, Dr. O'Dwyer, Geo^d D. Fitzgerald,
 Pat^l O'Mealy, D. Begley, P. M^e Namara, Edw^d Tobin,
 John Clune, (15)
M^e Spillane, declined to vote

Third Poll

Piordan - J. C. Delaney, W. F. Gabbitt, Sir J. Spaight,
 A. W. Shaw, J^r Nash, J. W. Harrington, J. G. Barry,
 P. L. Browne, J^r Quinane, W^m Spillane, J^r O. G. Delaney,
 Peter Fitzgerald, Rich^d Troy, P^l Herbert, W. O'Donnell, Tho^s
 Hartigan, J^r O'Mara, Mich^l Spain, Tho^s Gaffney, E. H. P.
 Horsford, Pat^l Piordan, J^r Anglin, (22)

Gratiam - J. G. Kelly, J. Shine, J. Frost, J. M^e M. Ryan,
 S. Hastings, P. M^e O'Donnell, J^r Zinn, J. Conihans,
 W^m J. O'Donnell, S. W. Zinn, F. G. M. Kennedy, D. F. M^e Namara,
 Dr. O'Shaughnessy, David Ryan, W^m Abraham, John M^e Namara,
 David Gauley, Doctor O'Dwyer, Geo^d J. Bourke, Geo^d D. Fitzgerald,
 P^l O'Mealy, D. Begley, P. M^e Namara, Edw^d Tobin, John
 Clune (25)

Final Poll

O'Mara - John George Kelly, David J. Gabbitt,
 Tho^s W. M. Ryan, A. W. Shaw, J^r G. Barry, Pat^l
 M^e O'Donnell, John Quinane, Jerome Conihans,
 S. W. Zinn, W^m Spillane, Dr. O'Shaughnessy, Dr. Ryan,
 Rich^d Troy, P^l Herbert, W. O'Donnell, W^m Abraham,
 Tho^s Hartigan, James O'Mara, Mich^l Spain, P. Piordan,
 Geo^d J. Bourke, J^r Anglin, (22)

Gratiam - J^r Shine, J. C. Delaney, Sir J. Spaight,
 J^r Frost, J^r Nash, J. W. Harrington, S. Hastings,
 J^r Zinn, P. L. Browne, W^m J. O'Donnell, J^r O. G. Delaney

J. M. Kennedy, Peter Fitzgerald, D. Mc-Namara, Thos. Gaffney, John Mc-Namara, E. H. P. Horsford, D. Clancy, Doctor O'Dwyer, Jas. D. Fitzgerald, P. Mc-Namara, David Begley, P. Mc-Namara, Edw. Tobin, J. Mc-Namara (25)

D^r Graham was therefore declared duly elected.

The following acts were submitted and recommended for payment—

D ^r Myles - Acting for 2 weeks or 14 days during the D ^r O'Connor's illness	£ 8. 8. 0
D ^r Myles - Acting for one week - D ^r Gilston	£ 3. 3. 0
Lim ^b Male Prison - Fire Wood (21.3.91)	12. 6
Gas act - quarter ending 31 st March/91	£ 1. 9. 2

2 cent of Carbolic Powder as suggested by D^r Brown Inspector, for disinfecting purposes was ordered, and the Requisitions for Drugs, the Medical Registers, and Medical Officer's Attendance book having been signed the meeting separated.

J. Rivkin

June 8/91

Chairman

June 1891

132.

The usual monthly meeting of Dispensary Committee was held in the New building Cornwallis St on 8th June 1891. The Mayor - Ald^{rs} Riordan presiding - also present - The Rev^d David Fitzgerald P.P., Rev^d J. Bourke P.P., Alderman Gaffney, M^{rs} Clune, Bealey, Anglin, O'Malley, Hartigan, J^r O'Mara, O'Herbert, with the Hon Sec John W. Lee.

The minutes of the last meeting having been read and confirmed by the Chairman, a discussion arose with reference to Letter from L. G. B. of 28th / Apr / 91, requesting that salaries sh^d be fixed for the two Midwives, proposed to be appointed for the four Districts of the Limerick City Dispensary, in accordance with Article 12 of Gen^l Regulations.

The following resolution was proposed by the Rev^d J. Bourke P.P. and 2nd by David Bealey J. C.
"That two Midwives be appointed for the four districts of the Limerick City Dispensary according to recommendation of Local Gov^{ment} Board Inspectors - Passed - Aldermen Gaffney & Riordan voting against it.

A letter ^{was read} from Mary Hartigan, Charwoman, to dispensary, applying for increase wages - it was proposed by the Rev^d Father Fitzgerald & 2nd by Ald Gaffney, and passed, that an increase of two pounds yearly be granted.

It was ordered that notices be printed warning children from playing about door, and main hall of dispensary, under a penalty of prosecution.

The sum of £18. 18. 0 was recommended to be paid to Dr. J^r O'Mara, for acting as interim medical officer, during his weeks.

of No 1 Dispensary district

Requisitions for 5 Cwt fire wood for surgery, and two tons of coals for Mr Lee were signed. The Drug requisition, were also signed, and the meeting closed, as well as, the Medical Officer's attendance book, and Medical relief registers. The meeting then closed.

Read & adopted

O'Riordan

Chairman

June 10/91

Read in Committee

O'Riordan

Chairman

July 13/91

July 13th 19

The usual monthly meeting of Dispensary Committee was held in the vest building, Cornwallis St - on July 13th 1991. The Chair was occupied by Ald^r O'Riordan Mayor, and the following members were present
 The Rev^d Father Fitzgerald P.P, W. J. O'Donnell J.P
 Bryan O'Donnell J.C, Dr O. Shanphuesey,
 Pat^r Herbert J.C, Thos - M^r - M. Bryan J.P, James O'Mara J.C and the Town Sec

The minutes of the last meeting having been read and signed, the secretary was asked if any communication had been rec^d from the Board of Guardians relative to the appointment of midwives recommended by the Committee on 8th ult, and his reply being in the negative, it was ordered that the omission should be noted on the minutes.

A letter from Dr Holmes, Sanitary Officer,

calling attention to the condition of cells at the caretaker's side of the Dispensary, and

The Mayor, W^r O'Shaughnessy, M^r Ryan C.E., M^r Herbert, with M^r Hennessey C.E. were appointed a subcommittee to report thereon.

This proposition was made by Father Fitzgerald P.P. and seconded by M^r W. O'Donnell.

The following acts were recommended for payment.

- To Gas Committee for fittings - Mar quarter 191. to 14. 14. 7
- P. W. Ryan repairing Dispensary (lock) 2. 6
- Dr. Graham, acting "loc ten" for Dr. Holmes from Feby 12th to May 7th 1891 - 12 10 } £ 37. 16. 0
- To Dr. Holmes for 91 vaccinations between } 9. 2. 0
- Jan 1st and June 30th 191
- To Dr. Gilstone for 49 vaccinations between } 14. 18. 0
- the 1st Jan and 30th June 1891

It was decided that - Anne Farrell 33 Nicholas St. to whom an import-visiting ticket had been issued on 14th June 191 - is not a fit object for relief, and the ticket was accordingly cancelled. (No. 658)

Requisitions for Drugg^{and} for two tons House Coal for caretaker were signed, and the medical relief registers, medical officers attendance book, and vaccination books having been duly examined & signed the meeting separated.

W. Hennessey to a vote

J. O'Shaughnessy

W. O'Donnell

M. Ryan

M. Herbert

1891 Sept 10th / 91.

There was no meeting of Dispensary
Committee on this date

John H. Lee
House Sec

September - 1891

At the Dispensary Committee meeting
held on 14th of Sept the following members
were present. The Mayor in the Chair -
Very Rev^d - J. Bourke P.P., David Weyley J. C.
Pat^r Herbert, The Very Rev^d - D. Fitzgerald and
John H. Lee - House Sec.

The minutes of the July meeting were
read and signed. The secretary read
communications from L. G. B. No 33.773.91
Miscellaneous" calling attention to 17347/78
Miscellaneous". "Tickets for Medical Relief"
and dated 31st Augt 1878. Marked "Dead".

A bill from P. Power of 6th 791
amt. of acct. for £2.14.0 was ordered to be sent
back with a request to have items set forth.

On the motion of Pat^r Herbert, seconded
by Very Rev^d - Dan^l Fitzgerald the following
resolution was passed

That the Secretary furnish a return
of the quantities of Coals, Gas & Water supplied
to the different departments of the Dispensary
from the 1st of Nov^r - 1890 to 30th of Sept^r 1891

Payment to John Prop of 10/- for 5 Cwt fire
wood, delivered in June, was sanctioned

A letter dated 22nd Augt / 91 from Dr. Shanahan
asking for 8 or 10 days leave, and proposing
Dr. Fogarty as substitute, was read and
approved. also, from W^m Graham dated 8th Sept^r

applying for a little indulgence, and suggesting Dr. Pivordan as substitute.

It, too, was approved.

A letter was read from Secretary to Water Works Committee, stating that our complaints of scarcity of supply could only be remedied, by putting on a constant flow at \$1 per quarter. Sanctioned.

A return presented by Dr. Graham for 71 vaccinations performed in his district between June 1st /91 & 30th June /91 - by the late Dr. O'Connor, by Dr. O'Mara and self - \$7.2.0 was recommended for payment, ~~where~~ the Dr. to be requested to add a currency on face of acct.

The Medical Officers attendance book, the Relief Registers, and requisitions for Drugs having been signed the meeting adjourned.



Oct 12/91



Chairman

- October 1891 -

137.

The usual meeting was held on 12th Oct/91. members of Committee present were The Mayor (Alb. Piordan), in the Chair. Pat^l Herbert and the Hon Sec.

The minutes of last meeting having been read and confirmed, a letter from The Clerk of Union was read, requiring information for Board of Guardians, relative to the cleansing, disinfecting and ventilation of Dispensary, also the following reply sent by Hon Sec. - "The cleansing of the Dispensary, the waiting room & closets - is well maintained, and carried out according to the suggestions of Dr. Brown, L. G. W. Inspector. The ventilation, however, still remains imperfect and very deficient. The matter remains for a fuller meeting."

An acct. from the Ref^{ce} Leonard. Co for £9.3.8 was submitted, but a sum of £4.5.0 only was recommended for payment, the latter amt. having been sanctioned at meeting held on 8th of Sept. 1890. The balance of the acct. to remain over for review at a fuller meeting. The sum of £7- for cleaning of chimneys was recommended for payment to Martin Higgins, but, in future timely applications is to be made to the Committee when such necessities arise. The sum of £2.14.0 was passed for payment to Rich^d. Power ofons, for two tons of coals, the same referred from last meeting.

M^{rs} Hartigan, Charwoman, asked Committee to give instructions, that the advance of wages, sanctioned in June last, be made to her, as no effect has been given to their recommendation.

up to the present time. This was postponed for a larger meeting.

Requisitions for two tons of coals, and 5 Cst of Fire wood, for Mr Lee, and two tons coals for surgery were signed, also the medical Relief Register, medical officer's attendance book, and Drug requisitions. The meeting then adjourned.

Oct 21/91

Read

O'Rourke

O'Rourke

Quinn

July 8/92

The ordinary meeting of Committee was held on November 9th 1890 at which Dr O'Shaughnessy presided. There were also present Ald Gaffney, Pat O'Meally and the Hon Sec John H. Lee. Mr. Stenussy C.E. and the Caritaller were in attendance.

The minutes of the previous meeting were read and signed. Arising out of those minutes, the question of ventilation of main hall of Dispensary was not dealt with, and remains for consideration by a fuller meeting.

Also arising out of minutes of last meeting the bill of the Mr Leonard O.C. for £9.3.8 was brought under notice for discussion, and dealt with in the following resolution Proposed by Pat O'Meally ^{"We recommend"} that the balance of the [£] and 2nd by Ald Gaffney ^{Mr Leonard's acct.} furnished up to Apr 18th 1891, amt £4.18.8 be paid, as, upon investigation, it was found that the items were indispensably necessary, and that a considerable portion of same had been previously ordered by the Committee.

A letter from Dr Holmes dated 18th Oct 91 was read

stating that he was compelled, under medical advice, to leave town for a week, and naming Dr. Riordan as his substitute. The secretary having stated, that Dr. Holmes had returned at the end of the time specified, and was at present doing duty - the letter was marked by the Chairman.

Mr. Lee having reported that he was unable to submit the usual drug requisitions for signatures, owing to his not having received all the lists from all the Contractors, it was ordered that the Clerk's attention be attracted by noting the fact upon the minutes.

Requisitions for Two tons of Coals and 5 cut-fire wood for caretaker were signed, also for 5 cut-fire wood for sweeping and one doz boxes of writing pens. Ordered, that six chimneys be cleaned.

The Medical Register, and medical officers attendance book having been signed the meeting closed.

O. Riordan

Chairman

Janry 8/92

(Nov^r 24th /91)

A special meeting - requisition signed by the Mayor and Jeremiah Anglin - was held on Nov^r 24th - "to consider a report upon the condition of Dispensary roof, and adopt remedial measures". The Rev^d Danl. Fitzgerald occupied the chair, and there were also present Patrick O'Mealy, Bryan O'Donnell, Richard Jarry and John Quinane J.P. with Mr. Hennessy Arch^t and the House Sec^y. Mr. Lee reported that the recent storm had damaged the roof to

such an extent, that the ceilings were being injured in many places by water, owing to the removal of slates. He also submitted an estimate for the execution of the necessary work of repair from Michael Hayes for the sum of £4 four pounds. Mr. O'Donnell then proposed, that Michael Hayes' tender for repair of roof for the sum of £4 be accepted, and that the work be completed within a week from this date, and certified by Mr. Hennessy. This was recorded by Mr. Jary and the meeting separated.

Richard
Chairman
Jary 17/12/91

J. P. Jary

December 17th 191

The Committee on 14th Dec^r The Mayor in the Chair supported by Ald. Caffrey, Tho. Hartigan, P. O'Malley, Very Rev. Father Fitzgerald, Pat. Herbert and the Hon. Secretary. The minute book not having been sent from Workhouse, the Minutes of previous meetings could neither be read nor signed.

Mr. Lee reported that he was obliged to retire from duty on the 6th Dec^r, suffering from chest trouble, as certified by Dr. Gylston. He wrote to the Chairman of Committee on Dec^r 5th nominating Mr. Herriott L.P.S. his substitute, and resumed duty on 12th Dec^r.

The sum of £2.2.0 was passed & recommended for payment to Mr. Herriott. also the sum of £4 (four pounds) to Michael Hayes for work done upon roof, certified by Mr. Hennessy C.F.

An estimate for £5 (five pounds) to cover cost of further repairs of roof, removing a pane of glass, and fixing a ventilating contrivance in its stead, was postponed.

The Quo are to 2.8.14 - to 1.18.14 for June quarters and 10/- for Sept. quarters - was set aside to await particulars, when had, if correct - payment recommended.

The use of Committee Board rooms was granted to the County branch of Irish Medical Association on the application of their Hon Sec Mr Lee. Meetings to be held once a month.

Requisitions for two Padlocks for safe at front of building, and a sweeping brush were signed also for Drump, and two tons house coals for Survey. The Registers having been signed as well as the Medical Officer's attendance and both the meeting adjourned.

The particulars of gas bill referred to above have been procured since, ~~the above~~ and being found correct cheque for £2.8.14 is recommended to issue.

Resolved
Chairman
January 8/92

J. R. Powell
Chairman

January 11th 1912

The very Rev. Father Fitzgerald being the only member in attendance there was no meeting of Committee - Medical Requisitions sent to Clerks of Unions.

13/10/1892

John H. Lee
12.1.92

The Committee met on 8th Feby, Alderman
 Piondas presiding, John M^r Hamara, Pat^l
 Herbert and Jeremiah Anglin with the Hon
 Sec were also in attendance

The minutes for of previous meetings
 having been read and signed a letter was
 read from Dr. Gjeston - enclosing Medical
 Certificate dated Jan'y 6th 1891, stating that
 he has been ill with Influenza, and recommend
 ing Dr. Thos. Myles as substitute. The Secretary
 reported that Dr. Gjeston resumed duty on 21st
 of January. A sum of £6.6.0 was recom-
 mended for payment to Dr. Myles.

The following acts were recommended for
 payment

- To the Linth. Steam ship Co for Coals - 4 Tons. £3. 19. 0
- Dr. Holmes for 95 Vaccinations to 31st Dec-191. 9. 10. 0
- Dr. Graham for 103 " " to 31st Dec-191. 10. 6. 0
- Dr. Gjeston for 66 " " " " 6. 12. 0
- Martin Higgins for sweeping nine chimneys 9. 0

The resetting of a grate, and glazing of four
 window panes was sanctioned, and a new
 water fry was ordered to be purchased for
 Dr. Shanahan's room in lieu of one broken.

Requisitions were signed for two tons Coals
 each for Mr. Lee, the Car taker and the Sweeper.
 with 5 Cwt of fire wood for the latter department.

The Medical requisitions, Registers, and Med-
 ical Officer's Attendance book having been signed the
 meeting adjourned.

J. J. Good
 Chairman
 10 Feb 1892

A. Fitzgerald
 Chairman

1892

March.

143.

The ordinary monthly meeting of Dispersing Committee was held on March 14th 1892. The Very Rev^d Dan. Fitzgerald P.P. in the Chair - W^m Nolan and P. O'Neally with the Hon Sec^y were also present. The Curate Mr. Coffey was in attendance.

The minutes of previous meeting were read and signed.

The Gas acct for quarter ending 31st Dec^r 191 amt^t to 4.7.5 was submitted and payment recommended. Payment was also sanctioned to Michl. Daly of 10/- (ten shillings) for the setting of two Grates.

The requisitions for Medicines; Medical Officers Attendance book, and relief registers were signed, as well as orders for two tons ^(at least supply for 1/2 year) coal and 5 Cwt Fire wood for Mr. Lee.

It was ordered that two panes of Glass be renewed recently broken by snowballs.

~~Mr. [redacted] having expressed his desire to answer some observations made at previous meeting, yielded to the opinion of the Chairman, who thought it better to postpone the observations till the Pass and the Gentlemen concerned were present - the meeting then adjourned~~

J. J. 16 March 1892

J. J. [Signature]

1892 May 9th Monday -

144.

The 1st Meeting of the newly appointed Committee took place in the New Dispensary (Cornwallis St)

The following members were in attendance
Dr. O'Shaughnessy, John Clune J.C. Wm Nolan J.C.
John Guinane J.P. and James O'Mara J.C. and
David Clanchy P.L.C. Patters,

Dr. O'Shaughnessy having been moved to the Chair, he the Chairman proposed and Mr. Jas. O'Mara seconded, that also Pat^r Pivordan be selected Chairman for the ensuing year.

On the motion Mr. Guinane, seconded by Mr. Clune, Dr. O'Shaughnessy was elected to the Vice Chair, and Mr. John H. Lee was reappointed Hon Secretary on the proposition of Mr. Wm Nolan seconded by Mr. Clune.

The minutes of the last meeting having been read and signed

An acct from Dr. F. O'Mara for two weeks attendance at Dispensary (Jan^y 4th to Jan^y 18 inclusive) during illness of Dr. Holmes from influenza, certificate signed by Dr. Graham, was presented.

Payment of £6.6.0 to Dr. O'Mara was sanctioned. Permission was given to the Secretary to have accidental breakage of window glass in future repaired, without delay, and the carpet-sweeping of chimneys attended ^{in little measure} to reports of same to be

unfailingly made at the next ensuing meeting of Committee. Linth Steam Ship Co. ac^t for coals £6.3.6 passed and recommended for payment.

Instructions were given to have damaged sections of ornamental pailing outside building repaired, and the Chairman promised to interview the Police Authorities with the object of having organized supervision of the building, ~~established~~ and ~~of~~ ~~reality~~, established ~~and~~

The Drug requisitions and the
Court

medical officer's attendance book with their signs and the meeting separate.

W. D. Brown

J. Frost
Chas
11 May 1892

L. J. Knapp - 17th May 1892

June 13th - 1892

No meeting of Committee done and other orders sent to Clerk's office

John H. Lee
14.6.92
House Sec

17
15
1892

July 11th - 1892

No meeting of Committee. Orders for Drugs etc sent to Clerk's office

John H. Lee
12.7.92
House Sec

17
20
1892

John H. Lee
8/8/92

August-1892

146.

Meeting of Dispensary Committee took place on August 8th Dr. O. Shanley in the Chair, also present - The Very Rev. Father Shanahan P.P. David Bepley and the Hon. Sec. John H. Lee.

The minutes of May, June, & meeting were read - no meetings having taken place in June & July - and signed. The following was then read -

"We the medical staff of your Dispensary, beg respectfully, that you will grant us an Annual holiday - not exceeding one month - and pay the cost of substitutes, care, in all cases being taken that the names of duly qualified persons are submitted to the Committee for approval."

signed for District No 1 P. F. Graham M.D., No 2, T. S. Gelston M.D. No 3 John Holmes F.R.C.S. No 4 J. F. Shanahan L.P.C.S.I., John H. Lee L.L.B. To the Committee Lim^{td} City Dispensary Augt 8th 1892

on the proposition of Father Shanahan, seconded by D. Bepley. The following resolution was adopted. That the Hon. Sec, call the attention of members to the fact that this question will be brought forward for settlement at next meeting.

The following also was read - Dr. Browne L.C.C. Inspector has recommended - That the communication now existing between the Lavatories in Dispensary Kitchens, and the main sewer be stopped, and the waste water discharged on the surface, also the Cellar at Lavetaker's side - wherein stagnant water collects, and is always to be found - to be removed as being dangerous to the public health.

I recommend the suggestions of Dr. Browne to be carried out at once - John Holmes F.R.C.S.I. Med Officer No 3 Dist

Copy of this to be sent to Engineer with request my prompt attention to it.

August-1892

Two stand pipes were ordered to be placed one in each of two yards adjoining public waiting rooms, for flushing purposes.

The following accts were recommended for payment - To St. Section £1.7.2 for Plumbing and to Limth St Ship Co^y £3.18.0 for Coals supplies in June Gas Co^y for March quarter to £.19.0. Dr. Goaham for 103 Vaccinations to 10.6.0. To Dr. Holmes for 100 Vaccinations to 10. and to Dr. Gjelston for 63. £6.6.0. To J. M. ^{Martha} ~~Winnamara~~ Sons 3¹/₂ for clearing trap. A letter was ^{marked} "read" dated July 22nd/92 from Dr. Goaham stating that he has been summoned to attend the Court Assizes and nominating Dr. Barry as substitute. The Drug requisitions, also one for 2 cwt Carbolic Powder, with us well as the Medical Registers, Vaccination Registers, and attendance book were then signed & the meeting adjourned.

[Handwritten signatures]
 J. M. ^{Martha} ~~Winnamara~~ Sons
 J. M. ^{Martha} ~~Winnamara~~ Sons
 J. M. ^{Martha} ~~Winnamara~~ Sons
 J. M. ^{Martha} ~~Winnamara~~ Sons

September 12th 1892. Meeting of Committee was held on 12th Sept. Dr. O'Shaughnessy presiding also present Thos. M. M. Ryan J.P., P. O'Malley, J. Flynn, W. J. B. Donnell J.P., Rev. Father Shanahan, P.P., D. F. M. ~~Winnamara~~ (Mayor), Rev. Father Fitzgerald P.P., J. Plume, John Guinan J.P., Jas. O'Mara, Pott Holmes, and the Hon. Sec John H. Lee.

The minutes of previous meeting having been read and signed. The secretary read a letter dated 28th Aug-192 from Dr. Shanahan

(Sept⁵/92 continued)

148.

stating that he would be absent for 5 or 6 days from that date, and that Dr. Fogarty would perform his duties. also, from Dr. Graham certifying, that Dr. Holmes, owing to an attack of Dysentery, ~~is~~ is unable to perform his Dispensary duties, and that Dr. Mulcahy who has acted in his absence for some days is prepared to continue ~~and~~ doing so. Both letters were marked "Read". Gas ac^t £3.0-6 June 2^d to be paid

The question of Annual Holiday applied for Medical staff was then brought forward and on the motion of J. Glenn seconded by John Guinan & P. The following resolution was passed without dissent

Resolved

"That the Medical staff of this Dispensary in the future get an annual holiday of, not exceeding, four weeks; the names of substitutes (duly qualified) to be in all cases submitted to the Committee for approval, and the said substitutes to be paid by the Guardians"

It was decided that when members of the Medical staff were compelled to be temporarily, and unavoidably absent from duty that notice should be personally served on the Chairman, failing him upon the Vice Chairman, and failing both upon the Hon Sec

Requisitions for 2 Tons Coals, 55 Cwt Fire wood for Mr. Lee were signed. The Medical requisitions Medical Register, and Attendance book were also signed and the meeting adjourned

Adopted

J. R. Rordan

Chairman

Conrad Fitzgerald

Chairman

Sept 14/92

Oct 10th 1892

October 1892

The monthly meeting ^{of Committee} was held in the New Dispensary on 10th Oct. The Very Rev. Father F. Hyde P.P. in the Chair, also present - N. O'Donnell and James O'Meara with the Hon. Sec John W. Lee

The minutes of the previous meeting were read and signed. The Gas acct for quarter ending 30th Sept. amt. to 1.13.5 was recommended for payment. Two tons of coals were ordered for Carstairs, and one for town for sweeping and two hand brushes, for several purposes were also ordered, and the medical officers attendance book, Medical Registers and Drug orders having been signed the meeting adjourned.

14.11.92

M. J. Fitzgerald P.P. Chairman

The usual Committee meeting was held in City Dispensary on Nov^r 11th. The Very Rev. D. Fitzgerald P.P. presiding. Edmond Slattery and the Hon. Sec John W. Lee were also present.

The relief registers kept by D^r Graham, Galston, Holmes & Shanahan were signed, as well as the med officers attendance book and in order for 5 Cwt Fire wood for Carstairs.

Mr Lee submitted no medical requisitions for signature because of the failure of contractors furnish tender sheets, up to the present date, the year commencing 30th Sept/92. The meeting was then adjourned.

O'Rourke

Nov 16/92

Chairman

12.12.1892

John Guinness

Chairman

December 1892

150.

Committee meeting was held at the new Dispensary Cornwallis St on December 12th.

John Guinane J.P. occupied the Chair, other members present Edmond Slattery, P. O. Meall James O. Mara J.P. and the Hon Sec John H. Lee

The minutes of the previous meeting having been read and confirmed the following acc'ts were submitted and recommended for payment

To Dr Fogarty £6. 15. 0 for duty during illness of Dr Skane

To Dr Myles £3. 3. 0 for duty during illness of Dr Geld

To Dr Muleahy £9. 9. 0 for duty during illness of Dr Holmes

To Linch St ship 10th £4. 17. 6 for coals, and To Mr

Ryan Collooney St £7. 11. 6 for work according

to specification, and J. Mc-Namara for £5. 7. 6

for Plumbing. orders for the following were

signed, Two tons of coals each for the Surgery

Mr Lee and the Farthings, and 5 Cwt of wood for

Surgery. Two Pad Locks for gates in front, to be pro-

vided, and five box Locks to be renewed if found

unfit for repairing. The clock in Hall to be

cleaned, and a 12 foot ladder procured for

use in Dispensary. The following were also

signed requisitions for Dames to Leslie, Laird,

J.P. Evans and Harrington, The relief registers

and Medical Officer's Attendance book, ^{being signed} and

the meeting adjourned.

Read and Adopted

J. Guinane

Chairman

(to J. J. general P.P. Dec 14/92
Chairman

9.1.93